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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE
ERUE

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board (the “Board") of directors of the
Company (“Director(s)"), | would like to present the audited
consolidated annual results of Xingye Waulian Service Group
Co. Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “Xingye Wulian" or the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for
the year ended 3| December 2020 (the “Year”).
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 357 TIERAEZ,

—E_TERAEERREL LAFERR
MEEN—F R_T_ZTF=AN
B AEBERNETEMERZZMER

2020 was a landmark year in the Group's history. On 9 March 2020, the Group
was successfully listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Its

debut in the capital market continuously expanded the Group's brand influence,

and also opened the door to new opportunities and challenges. Upholding
the brand values of “Sincerity, Professionalism and Enterprising Spirit”, the
management will continue to improve operating and management efficiency,
create value for the Company and its customers, and give back to its investors

and society.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

During the Year, the Group recorded total revenue of approximately RMB213.2
million, representing an increase of approximately RMB29.1 million or 15.8%
from RMB184.1 million for the previous year. Net profit for the Year was
approximately RMB43.5 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB8.3 million or 23.7% from RMB35.2 million for the previous year.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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Leveraging on the advantages of our controlling shareholder, the Group
implemented the multi-brand synergy effect strategy and continued to undertake
a steady stream of non-residential projects from Zensun Group. Additionally,
backed up by its brand recognition and management experience, the Group
intensified its expansion into the third-party market and made strides in
contracted projects. For property management, the Group's properties under
management with the gross floor area (“GFA") increased by approximately 0.7
million sq.m. or 29.2% from approximately 2.4 million sq.m. as at the end of 2019
to approximately 3.1 million sqm. as at the end of 2020. In respect of property
engineering services, our business scale has been expanding. For the year ended
31 December 2020, our Group entered into 55 property engineering contracts
with an aggregated contract amount, net of tax, of approximately RMB78.9

million.

Looking back at 2020, property service companies assumed the role of frontline
anti-pandemic force amid the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic. In addition
to their original property management functions, property service companies
undertook commissioned assignments from various government departments
which enabled them to remain connected to the property owners. Overall, the
COVID-19 pandemic represented the second-time exploration in the value of
property management and served as a catalyst for the property management
industry to clarify the development directions of the property management
service companies. The Group made timely adjustments to its strategies and
roles to become not just a provider of property management services, but
also a defender of communities, a resolute barrier at the frontline of the battle
against the pandemic. A number of the Group's projects earned the recognition
of property owners, for which it received numerous appreciation letters from
property owners and awards from government departments. According to third-
party satisfaction surveys, the average satisfaction rate of office buildings reached
97 marks, while apartments reached 93 marks. Moreover, after years of steady
and healthy development, the Group has ranked among the top 100 property
management service companies on the annual rating of property management
service companies in the People's Republic of China (“PRC") (“Top 100 Property
Management Service Companies”) for five years in a row, with its ranking

continuing to climb.
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OUTLOOK

Looking forward to 2021, under the guidance of national policies and regulations,
the post-pandemic property management industry will unleash more energy and
the incremental market will continue to grow at a steady pace. With the growing
significance of properties and intensifying industrial reshuffling, the “cut-throat
competition” in the field of property management will assuredly escalate. The
competitive landscape of the industry will be reshaped by new changes as more
peer companies successively enter the capital market. Leveraging the advantages
provided by the capital market, a growing number of property management
companies will rapidly expand their scale of properties under management,
further driving up the industry concentration ratio. With the property
management industry in a phase of rapid development and consolidation, the
Group will stick to service quality as its core principle, focus on the “Talent
+ Mechanism + Technology + Innovation” strategy and actively carry out
innovative businesses while expanding the scale of properties under management
and enhancing the value-added services, in order to further improve the Group's
position within the industry. To some extent, the original focus on non-residential
business has hindered the business expansion of the Group. To grasp the
opportunities arising from the new trend, the Group will appropriately adjust
its business development strategies and enrich its property service offerings to
gradually take up management services for mid to high-end residential properties,
which will enable the Group to increase the area under management by means
of mergers, acquisitions and cooperation or submitting tenders or quotations for
provision of property management services in order to generate greater returns

to the investors and shareholders of the Company.

The Group will complete the upgrade and transformation from a provider
of property management service only to a provider of diversified services,
with more specialized service teams providing precise quality services to the
customers, which will gradually enhance the Group's market competitiveness and
brand influence. Leveraging on the advantages of our geographical location and
controlling shareholder, the Group will accelerate its expansion process through
multiple channels, provide a more flexible incentive mechanism and build an
expansion team with “wolf culture” to actively explore opportunities for strategic
cooperation, extend the layout of the property management industrial chain and

create new growth points to achieve rapid and sustainable growth.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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In the future, Xingye Wulian will continue to explore the fields of intelligent
engineering, Internet of Things and big data with further research in and
application of, among others, smart office and remote corporate management,
in order to achieve the efficient combination of smart technology and traditional
property management. On one hand, intrinsically driven by technologies, the
Group will continue to deliver high-quality property management services to
the customers. On the other hand, through standardised, intelligent and intricate
management achieved by an information system, the Group will exert a firmer
grip on the risks and management efficiency to implement a cost-saving approach
across the board. In the meantime, Xingye Wulian will unwaveringly carry out the
brand strategy built upon product and service quality and serve the customers

with a more specialized team and more precise positioning.

In addition, Xingye Wulian will grasp the opportunities arising from the rapid
development and upgrade and transformation of the property management
industry in the PRC. By means of mergers, acquisitions, investments and business
cooperation, the Group will expand and strengthen its business with equal
emphasis on profit and scale to achieve high-quality growth in its undertaking of

creating more value for the shareholders and customers.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
gratitude to our shareholders, business partners, customers and suppliers for
their strong support and trust. | would also like to thank our entire staff and the
management for their dedication and hard work in their contribution to the

Company's development over the past year.

Zhu Jie
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
|5 March 2021
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Director
Zhu Jie (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Zhang Huigi

Wang Jinhu

Liu Zhengiang

Independent non-executive Directors
Xu Chun

Feng Zhidong

Zhou Sheng

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Feng Zhidong (Chairman)
Zhou Sheng
Xu Chun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Zhou Sheng (Chairman)
Feng Zhidong
Xu Chun

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Zhu Jie (Chairman)

Zhou Sheng

Xu Chun

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Zhu Jie
Leung Ka Ying (appointed on 9 September 2020)
Lu Shuang (resigned on 9 September 2020)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Leung Ka Ying (appointed on 9 September 2020)
Lu Shuang (resigned on 9 September 2020)

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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AUDITOR
Emnst & Young

CORPORATE INFORMATION
DEEH

Certified Public Accountant and Registered PIE Auditor

SOLICITOR

Howse Williams

PRINCIPAL BANKER

China Construction Bank (Hanghai Dong Lu branch)

No. 63 Hanghai Dong Lu
Zhengzhou City

Henan Province

China

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54

Hopewell Centre

83 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KYT-1111, Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND REGISTERED OFFICE IN

THE PRC

Unit 407, Building B

Zensun International Plaza

0l Hanghai East Road

Guancheng District, Zhengzhou City
Henan Province

China

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

24th Floor

Wyndham Place

40-44 Wyndham Street, Central
Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.xingyewulian.com *

STOCK CODE
Stock Exchange: 9916

. Information on the website does not form part of this annual report
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS EERE

For the year ended

31 December

BE+t-A=1t—BHLFE

2020 2019

—B-EF —E-nF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBFT

Revenue Was 213,188 184,122

Gross profit E7 86,739 78,652

Net profit AL 43,503 35,173

Core net profit ™t RO FE R 49,468 44453

Net Profit margin (%) FENE(BOL) 20.4% 19.1%
Earnings per share BREN

— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) - EARREES (ARED) 11.41 1172

Note: The core net profit represents the Group's net profit excluding the effect of listing MIEE s ROMAEAEEAG EMAXTE

expenses. B A o
SUMMARY OF BALANCE SHEET EESEREE
At 31 December
Rt+t=A=+—~H
2020 2019
“E-EF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBFT
Total assets BERE 430,254 216,001
Cash and cash equivalent ReMREEED 369,166 173,147
Total liabilities BERER 113,910 102,001
Shareholders' equity IR 316,344 114,000
Current ratio (times) ;/Ib@tt\_? (%) 3.9 2.1
Total liabilities/total assets (%) afEeE AEAE (B 26.5% 47.2%

8 XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. Annual Report 2020




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Established in 1999, we are a reputable property management service provider
in Henan Province with a particular focus on offering property management and
value-added services for non-residential properties. We provide a wide range of
property management services which include, among others, security, cleaning,
greening and gardening, parking space management, repair and maintenance for
common areas and customer services, and value-added services which include
repair and maintenance for exclusive use areas, renovation waste clearance,
intermediary leasing services, etc. We also provide our customers with property
engineering services which include the planning, design and installation of security
and surveillance systems, access control systems, carpark management systems
and construction site management systems, in order to enhance the quality of

the property management systems of our customers.

During the Year, the Group gained further recognition in the industry with
recognition by the China Index Academy (“CIA") as one of the top 100 property
management service companies on the annual rating of Top 100 Property
Management Service Companies in terms of business size, operational efficiency,
service quality, growth potential and social responsibility. The Group's ranking
in the Top 100 Property Management Service Companies as published by CIA
improved from the 67th in 2019 to the 60th in 2020.

Our portfolio of properties under management expanded rapidly during the Year
with GFA increased from approximately 2.4 million sq.m. as at 3|1 December
2019 to approximately 3.1 million sg.m. as at 31 December 2020. As at 31
December 2020, our portfolio of properties under management covered 46
commercial buildings and 5 governmental buildings with GFA of approximately
3.1 million sgq.m. in aggregate and our portfolio of contracted properties covered

GFA of approximately 4.8 million sq.m. in aggregate.

Our property engineering services grew rapidly during the Year. We entered into
55 (2019: 58) property engineering contracts with an aggregated original contract
sum, net of tax, of approximately RMB78.9 million (2019: RMB50.3 million)
during the Year.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

In connection with the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been implemented and enforced by
the government across the countries. The Group will continue to adopt the
necessary measures, pay close attention to the development of the COVID-19
outbreak and evaluate its impact on the financial position and operating results
of the Group from time to time. The Group was not aware of uncertainties that

would cause material adverse effects on the operations, financial performance
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and the financial position as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak during the Year ~ SREEE&E - B KRR R BARREKE

and up to the date of this annual report.

FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt 7% B B8

W=
REBOKRRTERG()PESE R
B RIS LA K (i) ¥ % T2 ARFE -

Revenue
Our Group's revenue was primarily generated from (i) property management

and value-added services and (ii) property engineering services.

TR FE LR E R B 7 8 W e
BRAR -

The following table sets out the breakdown of our revenue by type of services

during the year:

2020 2019
i St 225 —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT AR¥ETT
Property management and MEETE MIBERES
value-added services
— Property management services — B IERE 157,937 74.1 141,114 767
— Value-added services — BB RR TS 7,071 3.3 8,135 44
165,008 77.4 149,249 81.1
Property engineering services YETIZRS 45,904 21.5 34,143 18.5
Others HAt, 2,276 1.1 730 04
Total #st 213,188 100.0 184,122 100.0

F R 2020 BB REEEER DA 11
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

The following table sets out the breakdown of our revenue between a person(s)
or company(ies) who/which is or are independent of and not connected with
our Company and our connected persons and related parties (“Independent

Third Parties') during the year:

TREIRAFE - BAIKEBILRXA
HEANRAEEAENALTRAR REM
HBEA T M ([BLFE=771)K
Yeas BAAR -

2020 2019
- 7 —= ﬂi 7j—L£E
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARBTTT
Independent Third Parties BUE=T 139,320 65.4 126,096 68.5
Related parties )bl 73,868 34.6 58,026 315
Total st 213,188 100.0 184,122 100.0

For the year ended 3| December 2020, our Group's total revenue was
approximately RMB213.2 million, representing an increase of approximately
15.8% as compared to approximately RMBI184.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2019. Such increase was attributable to the increase in revenue from
property management and value-added services of approximately RMBI15.8
million, and the increase in revenue from property engineering services of

approximately RMBI [.8 million.

Property management and value-added services

Our Group's revenue from property management and value-added services
increased by approximately RMB15.8 million or 10.6% from approximately
RMB149.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
RMB165.0 million for the year ended 3| December 2020. This increase was
primarily as a result of the growth of our properties under management of
approximately 0.7 million sq.m. through (i) expansion of our properties under
management to sales offices and show flats for property projects developed
by our related parties during the Year with revenue of approximately RMB8.4
million; and (i) the newly delivered properties for which provision of property
management services commenced. The newly delivered properties with full
year revenue contribution during the Year included, namely, Zensun Binhe
Mingzhu (1E /&R $528), Zensun Zichen Garden (1IER 2R E]), and Zensun
Huihang Mingzhu (IEFEEMEEEE), which brought an increase in revenue of
approximately RMB6.3 million.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEBN®R D

TREINBPIRFERYE LIEERS
BRI DYEERRBGIRMELHW R

The following table sets out the breakdown of our revenue generated from
providing property management services by type of properties and value-added

services for the year: BRAR

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTR ARETT
Property management services W E TR AR 5
— Commercial buildings —EAETF 146,864 89.0 131,126 87.9
— Governmental buildings —HEF 11,073 6.7 9,988 6.7
157,937 95.7 141,114 94.6
Value-added services HE(E AR 7,071 4.3 8,135 54
Total #Et 165,008 100.0 149,249 100.0
Property engineering services WF T ERE

Our Group's revenue from property engineering services increased by
approximately RMBI 1.8 million or 34.4% from approximately RMB34.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB45.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020. The increase was primarily due to the new
contracts entered into during the Year. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had
[22 revenue generating contracts as compared to that of 74 revenue generating

contracts as at 3| December 2019.

Cost of Sales

Our Group's cost of sales consists of subcontracting costs, staff costs and
materials and consumables. We recorded an increase in cost of sales of
approximately RMB21.0 million or 19.9% from approximately RMB105.5 million
for the year ended 3| December 2019 to approximately RMBI26.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020. Such increase was generally in line with our
growth in revenue during the Year with the increase in our properties under
management and the increase in revenue generating contracts for our property

engineering services rendered.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Our gross profit increased by approximately RMB8.1 million or 10.3% from
approximately RMB78.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately RMB86.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. Our
gross profit margin was approximately 40.7% for the Year as compared to that of

approximately 42.7% in 2019.

Other Income, Other Gains and Losses

Other income, other gains and losses mainly comprised government grants
and interest income. Our other income, other gains and losses increased by
approximately RMB7.5 million or 376.3% from approximately RMB2.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB9.4 million for the
year ended 3| December 2020. Such increase was mainly attributable to the
interest income brought from the capital raised from the global offering at a price

of HK$1.99 per share (the “Global Offering”) of our Company during the Year.

Selling and Marketing Expenses

Our selling and marketing expenses primarily comprised marketing expenses
and staff costs for our marketing personnel. Our selling and marketing expenses
increased by approximately RMBO0.3 million or 24.1% from approximately
RMB .4 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMBI.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2020. Such increase was in line with the

expansion of our business.

Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses mainly comprised staff costs of our administrative
staff at our headquarters, office expenses and professional fees in connection
with the Global Offering. Our administrative expenses remained relatively stable
between the periods at approximately RMB32.3 million for the year ended 3|
December 2019 and approximately RMB33.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DT

Finance Costs
Our finance costs represented the imputed interest generated from rights of use

assets in connection with the lease contract payments for our lease properties.

Income Tax Expenses

Our income tax expenses increased by approximately RMB5.5 million or 46.8%
from approximately RMBI .7 million for the year ended 3| December 2019 to
approximately RMB|7.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 which
was in line with the growth in profit before tax brought from the increase in

revenue during the Year.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, our profit attributable to the owners of the parent
increased by approximately RMB8.3 million or 23.7% from approximately
RMB35.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
RMB43.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.

FINANCIAL POSITION
Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment of our Group primarily represented machinery
and electronic equipment used in our headquarters and the management
centres in our properties under management. The value of property, plant and
equipment remained relatively stable and amounted to approximately RMB2. |
million as at 31 December 2020 as compared to approximately RMB2.2 million
as at 31 December 2019.
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Trade Receivables

Our total trade receivables was approximately RMB38.8 million and trade
receivable net of loss allowance was approximately RMB38.4 million as at 31
December 2020, as compared to that of approximately RMBI18.5 million and
RMB18.2 million, respectively, as at 31 December 2019.

Our trade receivables from related parties of approximately RMB34.4 million
as at 31 December 2020, representing an increase of approximately RMB20.3
million or 144.4% as compared to approximately RMBI4.] million as at 31
December 2019, were associated with outstanding property management fees
generated from unsold properties under management and property engineering
services rendered to the related parties. The increase in trade receivables from
related parties was primarily attributable to the increase in property management

and value-added services and property engineering services provided.

Our trade receivables from Independent Third Parties remained relatively stable
and amounted to same amount of approximately RMB4.4 million as at 31

December 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Trade Payables

Our trade payables primarily consisted of payables to our suppliers for their
products and our subcontractors for their provision of labour or services for
property management and value-added services and property engineering
services. Our trade payables amounted to approximately RMB25.3 million as at
31 December 2020, representing an increase of approximately RMB7.1 million
or 38.7% as compared to approximately RMBI[8.2 million as at 31 December
2019. The increase in trade payables was mainly related to products provided
by our property engineering suppliers which was in line with the increase in our

property engineering services rendered.
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Other Payables and Accruals

Our other payables and accruals comprised other payables, payroll payables,
deposits, tax payables other than income tax, amounts due to related parties and
listing expenses. Our other payables and accruals decreased from approximately
RMB45.7 million as at 31 December 2019 to RMB35.7 million as at 3|
December 2020. The decrease during the Year was resulted from the settlement

of the listing expenses and amounts due to related parties.

Contract Liabilities

Contract liabilities represented advanced receipts for property management
and value-added services. Our contract liabilities increased from approximately
RMB29.4 million as at 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB40.2 million
as at 31 December 2020. The increase during the Year was attributable to the

increase in the number of properties under management by our Group.

Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no outstanding borrowings and
unutilised banking facilities. The Group's lease liabilities was approximately
RMBS. | million as at 31 December 2020.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

Our Group maintained a healthy financial position. As at 31 December 2020,
the current assets amounted to approximately RMB423.1 million, representing
an increase of approximately 101.0% as compared to approximately RMB210.5
million as at 31 December 2019. As at 31 December 2020, cash and cash
equivalents of our Group amounted to approximately RMB369.2 million,
representing an increase of approximately RMB196.0 million or |13.2% as

compared to approximately RMBI173.1 million as at 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, our Group has no interest-bearing borrowings and no

gearing ratio was calculated.

The capital structure of our Group is primarily equity which comprises issued

share capital and reserves.
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Current Ratio

Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets divided by the total
current liabilities at the end of the year. The current ratio of our Group as at 3|
December 2020 increased to approximately 3.9 times as compared to that of
approximately 2.1 times as at 31 December 2019 due to net proceeds received
from the Global Offering.

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 December 2020, none of the assets of our Group was pledged.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, we did not have any material contingent liabilities.

Foreign Exchange Risks

Our Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of the transactions settled in
Renminbi. The foreign currency held by our Group was mainly arising from the
proceeds from the Global Offering of our Company on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Since such proceeds from the Global Offering shall be utilized
in our business in the PRC as its intended use, our Group did not consider that

there was significant foreign currency exchange risk.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 31 December 2020, our Group had 396 employees. Total staff-related

cost, including Directors’ emoluments, was approximately RMB28.2 million during
the Year. We generally determine employees’ compensation based on their
qualification, position, seniority and performance. Pursuant to relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC, we participate in various employee social security plans
that are organised by applicable local municipal and provincial governments,
including pension, medical, maternity, work-related injury and unemployment

benefit plans.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the Year, our Group did not have any significant acquisitions and

disposals.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

During the Year, our Group did not make any material investments.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Our Group plans to strengthen our position in the property management
service industry by implementing the following strategies: (i) undertake additional
property management projects with a focus on mid to high-end non-residential
properties; (i) selectively pursue merger and acquisition opportunities within the
property management industry; (iii) participate in an early stage of construction
projects with a view to winning the property management agreement tender
at a later stage of the projects; (iv) continue to develop our mobile application
to enhance our customer and user experience; (v) continue to enhance our
property management services and property engineering services; and (vi)
continue to upgrade our information technology systems to enhance our

operational efficiency in our property management business.

In view of the intensifying competition in the property management services
industry amidst the uncertain economic outlook due to the COVID-19
pandemic, our Group intends to adjust its business strategies to diversify its
portfolio of pipeline properties and consider undertaking engagements to provide
property management and value-added services to mid to high-end residential
properties by means of mergers and acquisitions of property management
services providers or project companies or submitting tenders or quotations for
provision of property management services with a focus on residential properties.
The Directors believes that such diversification will enable our Group to optimize
its overall operational efficiency to achieve a sustainable growth and maximize

returns to Shareholders.
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ZHU JIE

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Zhu Jie (ARZR) (“Mr. Zhu'"), aged 44, was appointed as our Director on
2 August 2019 and was re-designated as our executive Director, chairman
of our Board and our chief executive officer on |7 September 2019. Mr. Zhu
is the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company (“Nomination
Committee”). Mr. Zhu joined our Group in April 2015 and is primarily
responsible for the overall management and strategic planning of our Group's
business operations. Mr. Zhu is currently the chairman of the board of directors
and general manager of Henan Xingye Internet of Things Management
Technology Co., Ltd.* (i ma B EME @B IERI AR A F]) (“Xingye 10T
Management”) and the executive director and general manager of Henan Xingye
Internet of Things Information Consulting Co., Ltd.* (7] i S 2 ¥ B = B 7588
R A R]) (“Xingye Consulting”), each a subsidiary of our Company.

Mr. Zhu has over 19 years of experience in the real estate and property
management industry. Mr. Zhu served as a deputy general manager of Xingye
IOT Management from April 2015 to May 2017 and was subsequently appointed
as the chairman of the board of directors and general manager of Xingye IOT
Management in May 2017. He has been the executive director and general
manager of Xingye Consulting since its establishment in April 2018. Prior to
joining our Group, from August 1997 to March 2001, Mr. Zhu served as a
supervisor in Henan Zhengzhou Jianguo Restaurant Co., Ltd.* (] 7 B8 ZE B &R
JEB MR A A]), which is principally engaged in catering, entertainment and hotel
consulting. From March 2001 to August 2004, Mr. Zhu served as a manager of
Henan Xin Changcheng Shiye Restaurant Co., Ltd* (T RMEEBR A
RAIRWERJE), which is principally engaged in the provision of catering services
and property management. From August 2004 to August 2013, Mr. Zhu served
as a deputy general manager of Henan Taiping Shijia Property Management Co.,
Ltd* CABAFHRMERBERA

provision of property management services. From September 2013 to March

Al), which is principally engaged in the
2015, Mr. Zhu served as a deputy general manager in Xuchang Huiyu Real Estate

Co, Ltd* (FFEEMHER R A R]), which is principally engaged in real estate

development and sales.

Mr. Zhu obtained a diploma in refrigeration and air conditioning from Henan
Textile Industry College (7] B %1 4% T3 Z24%) in the PRC in June 1997.
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ZHANG HUIQI

Non-executive Director

Ms. Zhang Huiqi (5R23) (“Ms. Zhang"), aged 31, was appointed as our
Director on 12 August 2019 and was re-designated as our non-executive
Director on 17 September 2019. Ms. Zhang joined our Group as a supervisor
from September 2013 to May 2017 and re-joined our Group in 12 August 2019
and is primarily responsible for our Group's business development and investor

relations.

Ms. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in business administration (economic
information management) from Beijing Forestry University (At ARZE K E) in
the PRC in July 201 |, a master of science degree in management from University
of Leicester in the United Kingdom in January 2014 and a master of science
degree in project and enterprise management from University College London in

the United Kingdom in November 2015.

In addition, Ms. Zhang is currently a director of Global Medical REIT Inc, a
company listed on the New York Stock Exchange (Stock Code: GMRE) which is

principally engaged in the real estate investment business in the United States.

Ms. Zhang is the sole director of Foison Amber Development Limited and Fast
Achieve Global Limited, which are immediate shareholder and intermediate
holding company of our Group, respectively and interested in 56.59% of the
issued share capital of our Company by virtue of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"). Ms. Zhang is also the
protector and a discretionary beneficiary of the family trust (“Blossom Trust”)
established on 16 August 2019 by Ms. Huang Yanping as settlor, which ultimately
owns 56.59% of our Group. Ms. Zhang is entitled to control the exercise of
approximately 56.59% of the total issued share capital of our Company by virtue
of the SFO.
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WANG JINHU

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wang Jinhu (E£72) (“Mr. Wang"), aged 50, was appointed as our Director
on 12 August 2019 and was re-designated as our non-executive Director on
|7 September 2019. Mr. Wang joined our Group in May 2017 and is primarily
responsible for providing strategic advice to our Board. Mr. Wang is currently a
vice president of Henan Zensun Real Estates Co., Ltd* (AR EFE B ZHR A
2.

Mr. Wang has over 27 years of experience in the real estate and property
management industry. Mr. Wang has been serving as a director of Xingye 10T
Management since May 2017. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Wang served
as the construction supervisor from September 1993 to June 1995, then the
statistical officer from July 1995 to February 1997 of Zhengzhou Huayu Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.* (EB/NZER 0 E F & BR A Al), which is
principally engaged in real estate development and operation. From March 1997
to December 1997, from January 1998 to March 1999, from April 1999 to
October 2000, Mr. Wang served as a sales personnel, a manager of the strategic
planning department and a manager of the real estate management service
department, respectively, in Henan Xingye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.*
O E X EHERE AR A F]), which is principally engaged in real estate
development. From November 2000 to January 2003, Mr. Wang served as the
head of the landscape and decoration department; from January 2003 to January
2005, he served as a general manager of the project department; from January
2005 to June 2006, he served as an assistant to the chief executive officer; from
June 2006 to October 2008, he served as a marketing director and as an assistant
to the executive officer; from October 2008 to April 2009, he served as an
assistant to the executive officer, the head of the landscape support center and
technology centre and in April 2009, he was promoted to the position of vice
president in Henan Zensun Real Estates Co, Ltd* (M IEFEBEARAF)),

which is principally engaged in real estate development.
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Mr. Wang graduated from University of Henan (AIFIAZ2) in the PRC in July
1993 with a major in geography and completed a senior management business
administration course at Tsinghua University (& # AX22) in the PRC in October
2010. Mr. Wang also obtained the certificate of senior construction engineer in
March 2008 granted by Tianjin Personnel Bureau* (K32 AE/H).

LIU ZHENQIANG

Non-executive Director

Mr. Liu Zhengiang (Z]#X5&) (“Mr. Liu"), aged 61, was appointed as our Director
on 12 August 2019 and was re-designated as our non-executive Director on
|7 September 2019. Mr. Liu joined our Group in May 2017 and is primarily
responsible for providing strategic advice to our Board. Mr. Liu is currently a vice
president of Henan Zensun Real Estates Co., Ltd* (A IEE B XA R A A)).

Mr. Liu has over |6 years of experience in the property management and real
estate industry. Mr. Liu has been serving as a director of Xingye IOT Management
since May 2017. Prior to joining our Group, Mr Liu served as a deputy general
manager and a supervisor of the property management centre from October
2004 to October 2005, a deputy supervisor of the land development committee
from January 2007 to August 2008, a deputy director of the land development
centre from September 2008 to April 2009, a director of the land development
centre from April 2009 to October 2011, and was further promoted to the
position of vice president in October 201 | of Henan Zensun Real Estates Co,,
Ltd.* ORI IEEE AR A F]), which is principally engaged in real estate
development. Mr. Liu also served as an assistant to the general manager and head
of real estate management service and customer service department of Henan
Xingye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd* (i f B ¥ FEH EFEER A )
from October 2005 to January 2007.

Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree in physics, majoring in radio physics, in June
1983 from the University of Zhengzhou (ZFJNAZ2) in the PRC and graduated
from the University of Zhengzhou (B K2Z2) in the PRC in November 2006
with a major in business administration. Mr. Liu also obtained the certificate of
senior engineer of construction and installation in the PRC granted by Tianjin
Personnel Bureau* (K3ZT A D) in March 2008,
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XU CHUN

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Xu Chun (fR%) (“Mr. Xu"), aged 44, was appointed as our Director on
9 September 2019 and was re-designated as our independent non-executive
Director on |7 September 2019. Mr. Xu is a member of the Nomination
Committee, the audit committee (“Audit Committee”) and the remuneration
committee (“Remuneration Committee”) of the Company. He is mainly

responsible for supervising and providing independent advice to our Board.

Mr. Xu has more than |6 years of experience in the real estate industry. From
August 1999 to August 2004, Mr. Xu worked as a deputy chief of technical
quality division of Jiangsu Huajian Construction Co., Ltd. (Shenzhen branch)*
(L& B ERERRM BRARIRIIND 2 8]), which is principally engaged in
building construction. From September 2004 to December 2004, he worked
as a civil engineer of Shenzhen Hongwei Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.*
CRYIBEE b E R AR A F]), which is principally engaged in real estate
development. From December 2004 to April 2013, he worked in the Longban
area in Shenzhen Wanke Development Co., Ltd* (&I ERIZERER A F])
(formerly known as Shenzhen Wanke Real Estate Co., Ltd.* (FIITHERFEH
EEAMRAR])), which is principally engaged in real estate development with his
last position as a general manager. From April 2013 to April 2020, he worked as
a vice president in Zhuoyue Real Estate Holdings Co., Ltd.* (B ¥ £ EHR
2 A]), which is principally engaged in real estate development. From May 2020,
Mr. Xu was appointed as the vice president of Sinic Holdings (Group) Company
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
2103), and also served as the chairman of the board of Shenzhen, Dongguan
and Huizhou regions. Mr. Xu further served as the chairman of the board of Bay
Area Regions (including Shenzhen, Dongguan, Huizhou, Zhongshan and Zhuhai

regions) since December 2020.

Mr. Xu obtained a bachelor’s degree in construction engineering from China
University of Mining and Technology (A B A22) in the PRC in July 1999, a
master of construction and civil engineering degree in Southeast University (325
RE) in the PRC in April 2005. Mr. Xu has also obtained an executive master of
business administration degree from Tsinghua University (/52 A22) in the PRC
in January 2019.
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FENG ZHIDONG

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Feng Zhidong OFFER) (“Mr. Feng"), aged 47, was appointed as our
Director on 12 August 2019 and was re-designated as our independent
non-executive Director on |7 September 2019. Mr. Feng is the chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee. He is mainly

responsible for supervising and providing independent advice to our Board.

Mr. Feng has more than 20 years of experience in financial management, capital
operations and managing investor relations. In particular, Mr. Feng was a deputy
general manager of the capital department of Yue Xiu Enterprises (Holdings)
Limited from December 2009 to July 2016. Mr. Feng was also a general manager
of the investor relations department of a group company of Yuexiu Property
Company Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 123) from April 2012 to April 2016. Mr. Feng was an independent
non-executive director of LEAP Holdings Group Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1499), a company principally
engaged in the provision of foundation works and ancillary services from August
2015 to November 2017.

In addition, Mr. Feng has served as (i) the chairman of the board and a director of
Guangzhou Yueting Network Technology Co., Ltd.* (MR FARMEEHEER
2 R]), which is principally engaged in internet parking services, since June 2016;
and (i) the chairman of the board and a director of Guangzhou Yueting Capital
Management Co., Ltd.* (EMHEEARER AR QF]), which is principally
engaged in parking management and corporate management services, since
August 2018.
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Mr. Feng obtained a bachelor's degree in international accounting from the
Renmin University of China (FEBIARAKXZ) in the PRC in July 1995 and
obtained a master's degree in business administration from South China
University of Technology (ZERIIE T AE) in the PRC in February 2004. Mr.
Feng has also completed the mergers and acquisitions executive program from
the Business School of Sun Yat-sen University (1 LLIX22) in the PRC in March
2015 and the Global Entrepreneur Leadership Program from the PBC School of
Finance at Tsinghua University (B A28 H S FZER) in the PRC in July
2019. In addition, Mr. Feng obtained the certificate of specialty and technology
(intermediate level) in accounting in the PRC granted by the Ministry of Finance
of the PRC in May 1999.

ZHOU SHENG

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Zhou Sheng (JBIE) (“Mr. Zhou") , aged 48, was appointed as our Director
on 12 August 2019 and was re-designated as our independent non-executive
Director on |7 September 2019. Mr. Zhou is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee. He is mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent

advice to our Board.

Mr. Zhou has more than 21 years of experience in the legal field in the PRC.
From July 1999 to February 2002 and from March 2002 to November 2006,
Mr. Zhou worked as an associate in Beijing Weiheng Law Firm (1t R (@12
B F5FT) and Beijing Saide Tiangin Law Firm* (It R B{E K E) 2RI HF
FfT), respectively, both located in Beijing, China. Mr. Zhou started as an associate
at Beijing City Zhong Zhou Law Firm* (At R INEENEIEFT), a law firm
located in Beijing, China, in November 2006 and is currently a senior partner of

the law firm.

Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor's degree in materials engineering from Jiangxi
University of Science and Technology (JLPEIE T KZ) (formerly known as
Nanfang Yejin College (877782 %Ft)) in the PRC in June 1995. He also
obtained a bachelor's degree in law from China University of Political Science and
Law (FBIBUERER) in the PRC in July 1999. He further obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from Peking University (165 A 22) in the PRC
in July 2013.
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Mr. Zhang Yong (R E) (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 38, joined our Group in March
2015 and is primarily responsible for our Group's financing activities and capital

operation.

Mr. Zhang has over 8 years of experience in the real estate and property
management industry. Mr. Zhang served as an executive director and general
manager of Xingye |OT Management from March 2015 to April 2017. He was
a secretary of the board of directors of Xingye IOT Management from May
2017 to September 2019. He has been a deputy general manager of Xingye
|IOT Management since May 2017. Prior to joining our Group, from August
2006 to April 2011, Mr. Zhang served as an engineer of Zhejiang Electric Power
Company Jinshuitan Hydropower Plant* (47L& & 112 R R E K 1 ERK),
which is principally engaged in hydroelectric power. From May 2011 to March
2013 and from April 2013 to March 2015, Mr. Zhang served as a specialist of
capital operations and a manager of capital securities department, respectively,
in Henan Zensun Real Estates Co., Ltd* (AR IEREZEBRAR]), which is
principally engaged in real estate development and operation. Since January 2016
and from July 2016 to November 2018, Mr. Zhang served as a supervisor in
Henan Zhengshang Donghua Real Estate Co., Ltd* (R IEEREZT X AR A
A]) and Henan Zhengshang Shangbin Real Estate Co., Ltd* (AR IEEHEE
FBRAR]), respectively, both of which are principally engaged in real estate
development. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor's degree in agricultural hydraulics
engineering from North China University of Water Resources and Electric Power
(ZEJL/KFIZKEEPR) in the PRC in July 2004 and further obtained a master’s
degree in engineering from Wuhan University (EVEAZ) in the PRC in June
2006.
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Ms. Guo Hong (3B4L) (“Ms. Guo”), aged 48, joined our Group in January

2016 and is primarily responsible for our Group's daily operations.

Ms. Guo has over |2 years of experience in the real estate and property
management industry. Ms. Guo served as a manager in the general administrative
department of Xingye IOT Management from January 2016 to July 2017 and
served as a supervisor from May 2017 to September 2019. She was also
promoted to the position of supervisor in November 2017 in Henan Wuxiang
Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd* (Al E#IRE BERHZ B R A F]). She has been
a deputy general manager of Xingye IOT Management since August 2017. Prior
to joining our Group, Ms. Guo served as a sales consultant and sales manager in
Henan Minghui Real Estates Co,, Ltd* (RAIFA&EAEE E AR A A]), which is
principally engaged in real estate development and operation, from May 1997 to
September 1998 and from September 1998 to September 2000, respectively.
From July 2001 to September 2004 and from September 2004 to September
2011, Ms. Guo served as an assistant to the general manager and deputy general
manager, respectively, in Henan Runhua Shangwu Service Co., Ltd* (] F EEE
TSR BBR A A)), which is principally engaged in housing rental and business
information consulting services. From May 201 | to December 2015, Ms. Guo
served as a manager in the general department of Henan Jianzheng Real Estate
Co., Ltd* (AR IEFEHEBRRAR]), which is principally engaged in real

estate development and operation.

Ms. Guo obtained a bachelor’s degree in labour economics management from
Henan University of Economics and Law (8] R BT &S BUE KR ) (formerty known
as Henan College of Economics (FIFEET AL Z2FT)) in the PRC in December
[999.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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Mr. Luo Shudan (BZ ) (“Mr. Luo”), aged 45, joined our Group in
October 2016 and is primarily responsible for the overall management of our
property management services and property engineering services. Mr. Luo
has over || years of experience in the property management and property
engineering services industry. Mr. Luo has been serving as an engineering manager
and an assistant to the general manager of Xingye |OT Management since
October 2016. Prior to joining our Group, from October 1997 to May 2008, Mr.
Luo served different positions (including supervisor of the department of general
electrician) in Zhengzhou Jinlong Cement Co., Ltd.* (81 & BE/KERR (D AR
2 A)), which is principally engaged in cement production and sales. From May
2008 to July 2010 and from July 2010 to December 2012, Mr. Luo served as a
hydropower engineer and manager of the engineering maintenance department,
respectively, of Henan Shanshui Property Management Co., Ltd.* ()7 LLU7K#)
X BIEBPRZAR], which is principally engaged in property management. From
December 2012 to August 2013 and from August 2013 to January 2016, Mr.
Luo served as an engineering manager and project manager for Project Olive
City Urban Plaza, respectively, of Henan Yaxin Property Service Co., Ltd.* (7]
TR AR 2 A]), which is principally engaged in property management.

Mr. Luo obtained a bachelor in law degree from The Communist Party of China
Henan Provincial Party School* (F#AIEIEZER) in the PRC in December
2002. In addition, Mr. Luo obtained the certificate of speciality in engineering in
the PRC granted by the Shaanxi Provincial Department of Human Resources and

Social Security* (BRF5E A W E R E{REER) in August 2010.
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Mr. Xiang Zheng (181E) (“Mr. Xiang”), aged 35, joined our Group in June

2015 and is primarily responsible for the overall management of projects.

Mr. Xiang served as a project manager of Xingye |OT Management from June
2015 to July 2018. He was promoted to the position of assistant to the general
manager in July 2018. Prior to joining our Group, he was the administrative
personnel and business service manager of Henan Runhua Business Service Co.,
Ltd.* OFFE BB ARIE B R A A]), which is principally engaged in housing
rental and business information consulting services from April 2010 to September

2012 and from September 2012 to November 2013, respectively.

Mr. Xiang obtained a bachelor's degree in economic management from Beijing
Economic and Technological Research Institute (1 FASE R MTAHE L) in the
PRC in July 2010.

Ms. Shi Suran (BFEER) (“Ms. Shi””), aged 34, joined our Group as our chief
financial officer on 19 September 2020 and is primarily responsible for supervising

our Group's financial reporting, corporate finance activities, and investor relations.

Ms. Shi has over || years of experience in accounting, auditing and corporate
finance. Before joining the Group, Ms. Shi served as the project manager in
Zhongrui Yuehua Certified Public Accountants LLP (Special General Partnership)
(a member of RSM International) from October 2009 to August 201 |. She last
served as the senior auditor in the Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public
Accountants LLP Beijing branch during her tenure from August 201 | to October
2015, and as the senior auditing manager in Oceanwide Holdings Co., Ltd, a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000046) from
October 2015 to April 2016. Ms. Shi joined Henan Zensun Real Estate Co.,
Ltd* CAF IEPS B 3 B PR A A)) and worked as a deputy manager of the capital
securities department from April 2016 to May 2019 and thereafter worked as

finance manager in Henan Zensun Enterprise Development Group Co., Ltd.* (]

MIEFCEFEEEBRELLQA]) from May 2019 to September 2020.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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Ms. Shi holds a bachelor's degree in accounting from Henan University of Science
and Technology obtained in 2009. Ms. Shi is a member of the Beijing Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Leung Ka Ying (RXE) (“Ms. Leung”) is our Company's company
secretary appointed on 9 September 2020 and responsible for the Group's
corporate secretarial functions. Ms. Leung has over |2 years of experience

in accounting, auditing, financial management and corporate governance
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Certified Public Accountants and has obtained her bachelor's degree in Business 12 - RZ L ABBEHMAECEE - I
Administration in Professional Accountancy from the Chinese University of Hong RZZZENFREEEPXKREIEE
Kong in 2008. BERSHEZBLEM -

matters. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Leung has over 5 years of working
experience in Hong Kong listed companies, and has worked as a manager in

PricewaterhouseCoopers. Ms. Leung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of

b English translation of company names in Chinese or another language which are

marked with “*" are for identification purpose only.
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Our Directors present their annual report together with the audited consolidated

financial statements of our Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Our Company acts as an investment holding company and together with its
subsidiaries engages in property management and value-added services and
property engineering services. The activities and particulars of our Company's
principal subsidiaries are set out in note | to the consolidated financial

statements.

An analysis of our Group's revenue and results by principal operating segments

for the Year is set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of our Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 85.

Our Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect of the

Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Our Group was established in 1999, with a particular focus on offering property

management and value-added services for non-residential properties.

A detailed business review of our Group for the Year and a discussion of our
Group's future business development and the key risks and uncertainties of our
Group are set out in “Chairman’'s Message” on pages 2 to 5, “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 19 and the section headed “Key Risks

and Uncertainties”.

An analysis of our Group's performance for the Year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the “Chairman’s Message” on pages 2 to
5, “Financial Highlights" on pages 8 to 9 and “Financial Summary" on page 192 of

this annual report.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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Key Risks and Uncertainties
The below outlined certain key risks and uncertainties identified by our Group

that may affect our Group's business, financial position and results of operations.

Our Group's business performance is primarily susceptible to our portfolio of
properties under management for property management services and contracted
engineering services for property engineering services. Our Group's business
growth on our pipeline properties will likely be affected by the general economic
condition affecting the real estate market, delivery development of properties
developed by Zensun Group and any change in laws and regulation for our

operation in the PRC.

Our Group's current level of profitability also depends on the Group's ability to
control operating costs (especially in relation to our labour and subcontracting
costs) and the Group's profit margins and results of operations may be materially
and adversely affected by the fluctuations in labour or other operating costs
in response to the regulatory laws on minimum wages and demand on labour
supply, etc). The Group may not be able to procure new property management
service contracts as planned or at desirable pace or price; termination or non-
renewal of the Group's property management agreements for a significant
number of properties could have a material adverse effect on business, financial

position and results of operations.

Our Group's financial risks, management objectives (including capital
management) and policies are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial

statements.

In response to these possible risks and uncertainties, the Group continues to
implement a series of internal control and strategies to cope with the possible
risks and changes. The Group also develops and reviews strategies, policies
and guidelines on risk control which enable the Group to monitor closely and
formulate business strategies to respond to risks promptly and effectively. The
Group also actively proposes measures to minimise any potential business impact

on the Group from these possible risks and uncertainties.
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Environmental Policies and Performance

Our Group has established occupational safety and sanitation systems,
implemented the national occupational safety and sanitation rules and standards,
and provided employees with workplace safety training on a regular basis.
We promote the importance of environment protection and implement
environmental friendly policies in the operation, including green office measures
with accredited international environmental management certification. We are
committed to act in an environmentally responsible manner and review our
environmental policies and activities from time to time to enhance environmental

sustainability.

Our Company will issue separately an Environmental, Social and Governance
Report under Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as
specified in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules™).

Relationship with Stakeholders
Our Group recognises that our employees, customers and suppliers are our key
stakeholders and are dedicated to maintaining a good relationship with them to

build a solid foundation for the sustainable development of our Group.

Our Group offers comprehensive compensation to our employees, including
salary, bonuses and cash subsidies, and we also provide on-the-job training to
our employees. We generally determine employees’ compensation based on
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their qualification, position, seniority and performance. We have established B FEARKRETHM - HM
occupational safety and sanitation systems, implemented the national occupational ERVUBELZEREEHE  BEREXR
safety and sanitation rules and standards, and provide employees with workplace ~— ¥ L2 HEERBINIZE - FHAE

safety training on a regular basis.

In order to improve our communication with customers and their satisfaction,
our Group has established a mobile phone application “Ai Ban (E ##)" for
our property management services among us and the property users. The
advancement in technology facilitates an effective and efficient interaction among
us and the users and allows us to respond promptly to the customers’ needs,
which in tumn can also improve our operation planning and efficiency, our service
quality and our customers’ satisfaction rates.

Our Group has established a long-term and stable working relationship with
our suppliers. We will continue to maintain our assessment on the quality
of suppliers, review the procurement processes to ensure the supply chain
sustainability and uphold high corporate standard when carrying out our services.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.

TRETEGHZE2E -

ARRERMETFPHNBBYRSHERE
B AEECHERMEMERP 2HZ
Y—EFHERERIER] - AREM
MY EE RS o RAMMESRE TR
MEMRPZHNAER  SMEH  ER
e R M EEFFER - Ml E
BAES R LR - REERUR
EPMEE °

AEBEEREREY T RIBENITIE
R - HPIKEERSHHEEREEN
HE - BERBERIE - ARREEEN
ARENTHENTRERETREER

£ o

Annual Report 2020




REPORT OF OUR DIRECTORS

ExERE

Compliance with Laws and Regulations
During the Year, as far as our Company is aware, our Group has complied with
applicable laws and regulations promulgated by the relevant regulatory bodies

which are significant to the operations of our Group.

Impact of outbreak of COVID-19 on our business

. Impact on our business operation
In relation to property management and value-added services, our
Directors confirm that (i) since the resumption of work ordered by
the local government of Zhengzhou in February 2020, there has been
no suspension of work; and (i) our Group has not encountered and is
not expected to experience any shortage in labour or disruption to the
supply of subcontracting services or materials. In relation to our property
engineering services, our Directors confirm that our Group does not
anticipate any difficulties in meeting the milestone or completion date of

projects.

. Impact on our pipeline properties
Our Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge, as at the date
of this annual report, Zensun Group does not expect the delivery date for
pipeline properties developed by them to be delayed by a large extent as
a result of the outbreak of COVID-19. In light of this, our Directors do not
expect the revenue to be generated from pipeline projects to be materially

affected.

. Impact on our financial condition
Our Directors confirm that our Group has sufficient cash and cash
equivalents, which amounted to approximately RMB369.2 million
(equivalent to almost 2.3 times of the total expenses comprising cost of
sales, selling and marketing expenses, administrative expenses and finance
costs incurred for the Year) as at 31 December 2020. Therefore, in the
unlikely event that the operation of our Group is temporarily suspended,

our Group has sufficient working capital to satisfy our requirement.
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In light of the above, our Directors confirm that the outbreak of COVID-19 did
not have a material adverse effect on the Company's operations during the Year
and up to the date of this annual report. As at the date of this annual report, the
Group was not aware of risks or uncertainties that would cause material adverse
effects on the future performance of the Group, including the operations,
financial performance and the financial position as a result of the COVID-19
outbreak. The Group will continue to adopt the necessary measures, pay close
attention to the development of the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact

on the financial position and operating results of the Group from time to time.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the Year, our Company has issued 100,000,000 ordinary shares in
connection with the Global Offering of approximately HK$167.8 million. The
shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange with effect from 9
March 2020 (the “Listing Date"™).

Details of the movements in our Company's share capital during the Year are set

out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of our Company during the Year are set

out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2020 amounted to

approximately RMB254.6 million.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under our Company's articles of
association (“Articles of Association”) or the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige our Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis

to existing shareholders (“Shareholders™).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of our Group for each of the

last five financial years is set out on page 192 of this annual report.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither our Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of our Company's listed securities during the period from the

Listing Date to the date of this annual report.

CAPITAL RAISING ACTIVITIES AND THE USE OF
PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL OFFERING

The shares of our Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on the Listing Date and 100,000,000 new shares were issued in the
Global Offering. After deducting the underwriting fees and commissions and
other estimated expenses in connection with the Global Offering of ordinary
shares of par value HK$0.01 each of our Company, including, a public offering
in Hong Kong of 50,000,000 shares and an international offering of 50,000,000
shares, in each case at a price of HK$1.99 per share, net proceeds from the
Global Offering amounted to approximately HK$167.8 million (equivalent
to RMB149.6 million). As at 31 December 2020, our Group had utilised

approximately RMB2 1.0 million of the capital raised as follows:
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of our Company during the Year and up to the date of this annual

report are:

Executive Director:
Zhu Jie (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:
Zhang Huigi

Wang Jinhu

Liu Zhengiang

Independent non-executive Directors:
Xu Chun

Feng Zhidong

Zhou Sheng

In accordance with Article 84(1) and (2) of the Articles of Association, Mr.
Zhu Jie, Ms. Zhang Huigi and Mr. Zhou Sheng will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of our Company to be held on Thursday,
3 June 2021 (the “2021 AGM") and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election. Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the 2021 AGM are set out

in the circular to the Shareholders sent together with this annual report.

Our Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and our Company considers that all of the independent non-

executive Directors are independent.

Each of our Directors has entered into a service agreement with our Company
for a term of three years. No Director being proposed for re-election at the
2021 AGM has a service contract with our Company or any of its subsidiaries
which are not determinable within one year without payment of compensation,

other than normal statutory obligations.

The biographical details of our Directors and senior management of our Group

are set out on pages 20 to 31.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

During the Year, the Group was engaged in provision of property management
and value-added services and property engineering services to Henan Zensun
Enterprise Development Group Co., Ltd* (A EEPTEEREEARET
A R]) ("Zensun Development”) and its subsidiaries (the “Zensun Development
Group”), Zensun Enterprises Limited (“Zensun Enterprises”) and its subsidiaries
(the “"Zensun Enterprises Group"), Ever Diamond Global Company Limited
(“Ever Diamond”) and its subsidiaries (the “Ever Diamond Group”, together with
Zensun Development Group and Zensun Enterprises Group, collectively as the

“Zensun Group").

Ever Diamond and Zensun Enterprises are ultimately owned as to 100% and
71.99% by a discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang Yanping (‘Ms. Huang")
as settlor and protector. As Ms. Huang is the mother of Ms. Zhang, our non-
executive Director, both Zensun Enterprises Group and Ever Diamond Group
are connected entities of Ms. Zhang. Additionally, Zensun Development Group
is a connected entity of Ms. Zhang as Ms. Zhang is entitled to control more than
30% of voting power at a general meeting of Zensun Development. Therefore,

Ms. Zhang is considered interested in the transactions with Zensun Group.

Our Group's transactions with Zensun Group are set out in notes |5 and 30
to the consolidated financial statements. For details of the particulars of the
transactions with Zensun Group, please refer to the section headed “Continuing

Connected Transactions”.

Save as disclosed above, no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to our Group's business to which our Company, its holding
company, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
or any entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly

or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the Year.

Save as disclosed above, there was no contract of significance between our
Company or any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling shareholder of our
Company or any of its subsidiaries at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year. Additionally, no contract of significance for the provision of services
to our Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder of our

Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of our Company's business were entered into or existed

during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Company's Articles of Association, and subject to the applicable laws
and regulations, the Directors and officers of the Company shall be indemnified
out of the assets and profits of the Company from or against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them may incur or
sustain in or about the execution of their duty in their offices. Such permitted
indemnity provision has been in force throughout the Year. Our Company has
arranged for appropriate insurance coverage for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities
in respect of potential legal actions against our Directors and senior management

arising from corporate activities.

DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID EMPLOYEES

Details of the remuneration of our Directors, together with those of the five
highest paid employees of our Group for the Year are set out in notes 8 and 9

to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of our Directors
and chief executive of our Company in the ordinary shares of our Company
(““Shares”), underlying Shares and debentures of our Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
notified to our Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or any interest or
short positions which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or any interests and short positions
which have to be notified to our Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the

“Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Long Positions L3

(i) Interests in Shares () REROFREzR

Approximate percentage

Name of Director

Capacity in which the interests are held

Number of Share held of the issued share capital (%)

Exf4 BERAESD FEROEE  AERTRABNEDIL(%)
Ms. Zhang Interest of controlled corporation (Note) 226,350,000 56.59
R L REPABA S ()

Note: 226,350,000 Shares are directly held by Foison Amber Development, which P 5E : 226,350,000 A% A% 10 R 88 A B

F R 2020

is indirectly wholly-owned by Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited, the trustee of the
Blossom Trust. The Blossom Trust is a discretionary trust established by
Ms. Huang as the settlor, with Ms. Zhang acting as the protector and Ms.
Zhang and her descendants being the discretionary beneficiaries. Foison
Amber Development is wholly-owned by Fast Achieve Global Limited
("Fast Achieve”). Fast Achieve is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Glory Reach
Enterprises Limited (“Glory Reach”), which in turn is wholly-owned by Vistra
Trust (BVI) Limited, as the trustee of the Blossom Trust. Foison Amber
Development, Fast Achieve and Glory Reach are holding companies of
the Company, each of them is an associated corporation of the Company
under the SFO. Pursuant to the trust instrument governing the Blossom
Trust, Ms. Zhang as the protector of the Blossom Trust has the control over
the Blossom Trust. Accordingly, Ms. Zhang as protector of the Blossom
Trust is considered to be interested in the Shares held by Foison Amber

Development.
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(i) Interests in ordinary shares of associated corporations of our (i) RERAFELZEZERFIEZ
Company

Approximate
percentage of
the issued

Name of Name of

Capacity in which Number of  share capital
the interests are held shares held (%)

EERITRE
EZBFEESH FERGHEE BABDL(%)

Director associated corporation

EEHE A EE AR
Ms. Zhang Glory Reach Interest in controlled 100 100

corporation (Note )

SRR Rz REEEE /R ()
Ms. Zhang Fast Achieve Interest in controlled 100 100
corporation (Note 1)
SRt RIE R EE e (FRE)
Ms. Zhang Foison Amber Development Beneficial owner (Note 1) 50,000 100
SRR KINERE EaEAA D
Notes: BsE
(1) 226,350,000 Shares are directly held by Foison Amber Development, which ) 226,350,000 1% A% D B2 IH 3 B

is indirectly wholly-owned by Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited, the trustee of the
Blossom Trust. The Blossom Trust is a discretionary trust established by
Ms. Huang as the settlor, Ms. Zhang acting as the protector and Ms. Zhang
and her descendants being the discretionary beneficiaries. Foison Amber
Development is wholly-owned by Fast Achieve. Fast Achieve is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Glory Reach, which in tum is wholly-owned by Vistra
Trust (BVI) Limited, as the trustee of the Blossom Trust. Foison Amber
Development, Fast Achieve and Glory Reach are holding companies of
our Company, each of them is an associated corporation of our Company
under the SFO. Pursuant to the trust instrument governing the Blossom
Trust, Ms. Zhang as the protector of the Blossom Trust has the control
over the Blossom Trust. Accordingly, Ms. Zhang as protector of the
Blossom Trust is considered to be interested in the Shares held by Foison
Amber Development and the total issued share capital of Foison Amber

Development, Fast Achieve and Glory Reach.
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(2) Ms. Zhang is a director of both Fast Achieve and Foison Amber

Development.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of our Directors
or chief executive of our Company had any interests or short positions in
the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of our Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which: (a) were notified to our Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) have to be notified to our
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out
in Appendix |0 of the Listing Rules.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Neither our Company nor any of its subsidiaries were a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of our Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, our Company or any
other body corporate and neither our Directors nor any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of our

Company, or had exercised any such right at any time during the Year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Major Customers

For the Year, the revenue attributable to the largest customer of the Group
accounted for approximately 14.6% of our Group's total revenue of the Year and
the five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 38.9% of

our Group's total revenue of the Year.

During the Year, save for Ms. Zhang's interests in Zensun Group, none of our
Directors, or any of their close associates, or any of the Shareholders (who to
the best knowledge of our Directors own more than 5% of our Company's
issued share capital) had any interest in our Group's five largest customers. For
details of the interest of Ms. Zhang in the transactions with Zensun Group, please

refer to the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions'.

Major Suppliers

For the Year, the purchases from the largest supplier of our Group accounted
for approximately 42.6% of our Group's total purchases in the Year and the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 57.6% of our Group's

total purchases in the Year.

During the Year, none of our Directors, or any of their close associates, or any of
the Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of our Company's issued share capital) had any interest in our Group's five

largest suppliers.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the normal course of
business are provided under note 30 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report. Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions”, the Board confirmed that none of these related
party transactions constitute a connected transaction or a continuing connected

transaction as required to be disclosed under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Chapter |4A of the Listing Rules, the following transactions
are continuing connected transactions which are subject to the disclosure

requirements under Chapter |4A of the Listing Rules.

I. Master Property Management Framework
Agreements
On 18 February 2020, the Company entered into a master property
management framework agreement with each of Ever Diamond (the “Ever
Diamond Master Property Management Framework Agreement'), Zensun
Development (the “Zensun Development Master Property Management
Framework Agreement”") and Zensun Enterprises (the “Zensun Enterprises
Master Property Management Framework Agreement”), respectively
(collectively, the “Master Property Management Framework Agreements”),
pursuant to which we agreed to provide property management and value-
added services to Ever Diamond Group, Zensun Development Group and
Zensun Enterprises Group, for a term commencing from the Listing Date
to 31 December 2022.

On 28 August 2020, the Company entered into a supplemental
agreement with each of Ever Diamond (the “Ever Diamond Supplemental
Agreement”) and Zensun Enterprises (the “Zensun Enterprises
Supplemental Agreement”’) respectively (collectively, the “Supplemental
Agreements”) to amend certain terms of the Ever Diamond Master
Property Management Framework Agreement and the Zensun Enterprises
Master Property Management Framework Agreement including (i)
expanding the property management services provided by the Group
to Ever Diamond Group and Zensun Enterprises Group to include,
among others, security, cleaning, greening and gardening, parking space
management, repair and maintenance and customer services to sales
offices and show flats developed by, and exclusive use areas designated by,
Ever Diamond Group and Zensun Enterprises Group; and (ii) revising the
annual caps for the respective transactions contemplated under the Ever
Diamond Master Property Management Framework Agreement and the
Zensun Enterprises Master Property Management Framework Agreement

for each of the three financial years ending 31 December 2022.
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The revised annual caps for the three financial years ending 31 December
2022 are set out as below, which was duly passed during the extraordinary
general meeting held on 20 October 2020.

BE-T-_—_F+-HA=1+—HLt
AR B FEROLETFELRE
igns - HERZF-_FF+ A
ZTERTHBRREHIAE LEX
B

For the year ended/ending 31 December

BEt-A=1+—BLFE

2020
—BCEF
RMB’ million
ARBEER
Ever Diamond Master Property KB EE TR
Management Framework Agreement AR R 240
Zensun Development Master Property  IEf 3 RYIFEE R
Management Framework Agreement BIER = 30
Zensun Enterprises Master Property TREXMEER
Management Framework Agreement AR R 21.0
Aggregate revised annual caps RABTTFE LPRABEE 48.0

2021 2022
—E-—fF —E-=

RMB’ million RMB’ million
ARBEERT AR¥BEER
420 45.5
30 35
66.0 66.0
111.0 115.0

Details of the Master Property Management Framework Agreements and
the Supplemental Agreements have been set out in the prospectus of the
Company dated 25 February 2020 (the “Prospectus”), the announcement
and circular dated 28 August 2020 and 28 September 2020, respectively.

During the Year, the actual transaction amounts paid and payable by Ever
Diamond Group, Zensun Development Group and Zensun Enterprises
Group to the Group for the property management and value-added
services were RMB14.6 million, RMB0.02 million and RMB12.2 million,

respectively.
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Master Property Engineering Framework Agreements 2,
On |8 February 2020, we entered into a master property engineering
framework agreement with each of Ever Diamond (the “Ever Diamond
Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement”), Zensun
Development (the “Zensun Development Master Property Engineering
Framework Agreement’’) and Zensun Enterprises (the “Zensun Enterprises
Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement”), respectively
(collectively, the “Master Property Engineering Framework Agreements”),
pursuant to which we agreed to provide property engineering services
which include the planning, design and installation of security and
surveillance systems, access control systems, carpark management systems
and construction site management systems to Ever Diamond Group,
Zensun Development Group and Zensun Enterprises Group, for a term

commencing from the Listing Date to 31 December 2022.

The annual caps for the three financial years ending 31 December 2022

are set out as below.

RZEBE_ZEF_A+/\B " %Mo
Rl 5K # ([ ok B 5 T2 BAESRT
) FrAaERE((EEEEMET
BEERBZEDREREE(EY
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NYFETRRBIER S (S ME
TREERBZ] - Bt - BAIR
BErkEER - EHBREEERIE
HMEXEEIEHMETRRRS (2
RREREZERG - IR - =
BSEBRZARREETHER RS
WS - BETREER)  HIRAB
FTEHRE T -_—_F+—-A
=+t—H8-

BE_Z-_—_F#+-A=+—H1t
AV BRFERNFEE _LREHHT -

For the year ended/ending 31 December

BEt-A=+—-BLFE

2020
—s-2f
RMB’ million
ARBEETR
Ever Diamond Master Property KEBYETRE
Engineering Framework Agreement BIER R 225
Zensun Development Master Property  1E 3R % T2
Engineering Framework Agreement IR R 220
Zensun Enterprises Master Property FRHEXEMETR
Engineering Framework Agreement IR & 18.5
Aggregate annual caps FE LR 63.0

2021 2022
—E-—F g
RMB’ million RMB’ million
ARBBERT AR¥EETR
21.5 22.5
220 21.0
26.5 34.0
70.0 71.5

Details of the Master Property Engineering Framework Agreements have

been set out in the Prospectus.
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During the Year, the actual transaction amounts paid and payable by Ever
Diamond Group, Zensun Development Group and Zensun Enterprises
Group to the Group for the property engineering services were RMB15.8
million, RMB15.0 million and RMB 4.9 million, respectively.

Ms. Zhang is our non-executive Director and one of our controlling
shareholders and therefore is a connected person of our Company. As
at the date of this annual report, 100% of the number of issued shares
in Ever Diamond and 71.99% of the number of issued shares in Zensun
Enterprises are ultimately owned by a discretionary trust established by
Ms. Huang, who is the mother of Ms. Zhang, as settlor and protector, with
Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte. Limited as trustee and Ms. Huang and Ms.
Zhang as beneficiaries under the discretionary trust. In addition, Zensun
Development is a 30%-controlled company held indirectly by Ms. Zhang.
Accordingly, Ever Diamond Group, Zensun Development Group and
Zensun Enterprises Group are considered associates of Ms. Zhang and
connected persons of our Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions under the Master Property Management Framework
Agreements, the Supplemental Agreements and the Master Property
Engineering Framework Agreements constitute continuing connected

transactions for our Company under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule [4A.55 of the Listing Rules, each of the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by independent
non-executive Directors of the Company. The independent non-executive
Directors confirmed that each of the aforesaid continuing connected

transactions of the Group for the Year have been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them and
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

Shareholders as a whole.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.

RAFEE  xBEE - FEHERSE
EREEEXESERYETRERS
ENRENTEENERZS S5
DRIBAREISSEET AR
I50BBTRARK 4988 -

REETRBEFPINFFERITEEFRAET
—BERBR - Bt AR A EHE
BEAL - RAFHRAH - kD
TR BB #9100% R ERE B %
TN BB B71.99% Ty IR Z LAY
BHRELLT ERMER T ARR
# A) K Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte.
Limited ERZFEAN)K LK ZHEE
AREER  MERETMRAZLE
REEETNZEA o LI EF
ERA-HHRXITHEHERFEN
30% AR A A o FEE - ARIE ETAR
A xkBEE - FREEREERIE
HMEXEEHERRLTHBEA
RAQBINBEZEAT - Bk - RIB
FHRAE 4AE - WEEBRIE
Rk WMRBERMETIIREE
RipRE TR S EBARFN
FERERS -

RiE FTRAIE 14A5505 » Fall &
RERER SN RRIELIEHR
TEEEN  BUFRNTESH
R AEBRAFE LS FE
BEX5)

() RAEE—REEFTEBBIR
HEIN

(i)  H—MEEBGKETL &
(iy REREZER S H@EH

=

223
ARIZBATERE  WHFEKR
REBMan 2 RFKETAL ©

Annual Report 2020




ORXR

X
s

REPORT OF OUR DIRECTORS /
EEEHE ez

AN

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has engaged
the auditor of the Company to conduct certain procedures in respect of
the continuing connected transactions of the Group in accordance with the
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagement 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagement Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
Board has received an unqualified letter from the auditor containing the
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group and confirming the matters set out in Rule [4A.56
of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor's letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

In accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagement
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagement Other than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information”, the auditor has also reported to the
Board that for the Year, nothing has come to their attention that any of

the aforesaid continuing connected transactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing

policies of the Group;

(i) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with

the relevant agreement governing such transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded the relevant annual cap for the Year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

As at the 31 December 2020, according to the register of interest in Shares and RZZB_TF+_A=+—H0  BREX
underlying Shares and short positions kept by our Company pursuant to Section NAEREB S RHAEKRIIEXVEE336
336 of Part XV of the SFO and so far as is known to or can be ascertained after  {RFE 2 RN RABBERGD ER AR E
reasonable enquiries by our Directors, the persons (other than our Directors or it - URBEFBAIFMASREE S
chief executive of our Company) who were directly or indirectly interested in 5% BEREBAEE  BEEXFEEEELR
or more in the Shares and underlying Shares of our Company are as follows: AR 1D RABRARR (D 5%k LA E#eas 2 A+

(BEERARRRSTBRABRINGT :

Long positions in the Shares of our Company RAERTRRDZHFE

Approximate percentage

of the issued share capital

Name of shareholder Nature of interests Number of Shares held of our Company (%)
R NCTRE ¢y

REREM EEME FrERHEE RN E 2 L (%)

Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited Trustee of a trust (Note) 226,350,000 56.59
EREXFEA (BHEE)

Glory Reach Interest in controlled corporation (Note) 226,350,000 56.59

RiE R EE S ()

Fast Achieve Interest in controlled corporation (Note) 226,350,000 56.59

RE R EE RS ()

Foison Amber Development  Beneficial owner (Note) 226,350,000 56.59

KINBRE EaBEAA ()

Eco-Victory Limited Beneficial owner 73,650,000 1841

BIEBRAT EREAA

Note: 226,350,000 Shares are directly held by Foison Amber Development, which is Ff3E - 226,350,000 R IR R IR E#

indirectly wholly-owned by Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited, the trustee of the Blossom B - MEEEEH Vistra Trust (BVI)
Trust. The Blossom Trust is a discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as the Limited(BEFENXFEA)EELE
settlor, with Ms. Zhang acting as the protector and Ms. Zhang and her descendants e -  BEETRBELTIERVE
being the discretionary beneficiaries. Foison Amber Development is wholly-owned BT AL REET BRI E
by Fast Achieve. Fast Achieve is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Glory Reach, which EREANRRLZ T REEEAEE
in turn is wholly-owned by Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited, as the trustee of the Blossom EmA o RINBRBREZEHE -
Trust. RERKENDEMBRT - MRE

Al Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited ({E /R & 28
FREMEEAN) 2 AR -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person other than our
Directors whose interests are set out in the above section headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Securities”, had registered
an interest of 5% or more in the issued share capital of our Company, and short
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares, that was required to be recorded

in the register of interest pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

In order to avoid any future competition with our Group, on 18 February
2020, the controlling shareholders, Ms. Zhang, Foison Amber Development,
Glory Reach and Fast Achieve (the “Controlling Shareholder(s)""), entered into
a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) in favour of
our Company and its subsidiaries. Pursuant to the Deed of Non-Competition,
each of the Controlling Shareholders has undertaken and covenanted with the
Company that, she/it shall not, and shall procure that her/its close associates and
entities or companies controlled by her/it (other than a member of the Group)
not to, at any time during the restricted period, among other things, directly or
indirectly, either on her/its own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of
any person, firm or company (in each case whether as a shareholder, partner,
agent, employee or otherwise) carry on, engage, participate, be concerned
or interested in or in any way assist in or provide support (whether financial,
technical or otherwise) to any business similar to or which competes (either
directly or indirectly) or is likely to compete with any business which is the same
as, similar to or in competition with the current business of our Group, namely
the engagement of business as the property management and value-added
service provider to non-residential properties and property engineering service
provider in Zhengzhou, Henan Province and any parts of the world where our
Group or any member of our Group conducts or will conduct its business (the

“Restricted Business”).
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Each of the Controlling Shareholders had undertaken and covenanted with
the Company that if any new business opportunity which directly or indirectly
competes, or may lead to competition with the Restricted Business is made
available to any of our Controlling Shareholders, her/its close associates and/
or any company or entity controlled by her/it, directly or indirectly, whether
individually or together (other than our Group), she/it will or will direct or
procure the relevant close associates and/or controlled company to direct such
business opportunity to our Group with such required information to enable our
Group to evaluate the merits of the relevant business opportunity. The relevant
controlling shareholder will provide or procure the relevant close associates and/
or controlled company to provide our Group with all such reasonable assistance

to secure such business opportunity.

The independent board committee of our Company comprising all independent
non-executive Directors will be responsible for deciding and given the authority
to decide, without attendance by any Directors with beneficial or conflicting
interest in the new business opportunities referred to our Group by our
Controlling Shareholders (or their respective close associates or controlled
companies/entities other than members of our Group), the exercise of the pre-
emptive right under the Deed of Non-Competition. None of our Controlling
Shareholders and their relevant close associates and controlled companies
(other than our Group) shall pursue the relevant business opportunity unless our

Company decides not to pursue such business opportunity.

During the Year, the Company had not received any information from any of
the Controlling Shareholders in respect of any new business opportunity which
directly or indirectly competes, or may lead to competition with the Restricted
Business which were made available to any of our Controlling Shareholders, her/
its close associates and/or any company or entity controlled by her/it, directly or
indirectly, whether individually or together (other than our Group). Further, each
of the Controlling Shareholders has made an annual declaration to the Company
that she/it had fully complied with her/its obligations under the Deed of Non-
Competition during the Year. The independent non-executive Directors had
reviewed the compliance of the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition and the
enforcement of undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition, and based
on the above, confirm that each of the Controlling Shareholders have complied

with her/its obligations under the Deed of Non-Competition during the Year.
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Ms. Zhang, our non-executive Director and one of our Controlling Shareholders,
and her close associates have been conducting other business or holding interest
in Henan Zensun Property Management Co., Ltd.* (A EEYXEEER
2] (“Zensun PM"), a company established in the PRC and indirectly wholly-
owned by Zensun Development as at the Listing Date, which focused primarily
on property management services for residential properties. Our Directors are
of the view that there are clear business delineations between our Group and
Zensun PM due to the differences in business scope, customer base, and as well
as segregated management and employees. Therefore, our Directors consider
that the business operation of Zensun PM does not compete, and is not likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of our Group. During
the Year, none of our Directors were interested in any business apart from our
Group's business, which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or

indirectly, with our Group's businesses.

In the fourth quarter of 2020, Zensun Development Group sold 91% of its
shareholding in Zensun PM to an Independent Third Party. Following the disposal,
Zensun Development Group remained 9% shareholding interest in Zensun PM

and Ms. Zhang ceased to be a substantial shareholder of Zensun PM.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by our Group during the Year

or subsisted at the end of the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Detailed information on our Company's corporate governance practices is set

out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 56 to 76.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, our
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules,
based on the information that is publicly available to our Company and within

the knowledge of our Directors.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the Board
on the basis of the merit, qualifications and competence of the employees. The
emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Board after recommendation
from the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, the Company's operating results, individual

performance and comparable market statistics.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes for the employees of the Group are
disclosed in the section headed “Other employee benefits — Pension schemes”

set out in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

IMPORTANT EVENTS SINCE THE YEAR END

There were no important events affecting the Group after 31 December 2020

and up to the date of this annual report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2021 AGM will be held on Thursday, 3 June 2021 and the notice of 2021
AGM will be published and despatched to the Shareholders in the manner as

required by the Listing Rules in due course.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining Shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote
at the 2021 AGM, the register of members of our Company will be closed from
Monday, 31 May 2021 to Thursday, 3 June 2021, both days inclusive. In order to
qualify for attending and voting at the 2021 AGM, all transfer documents should
be lodged for registration with our Company's Hong Kong share registrar, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,

Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 28 May 2021.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ermnst & Young, who
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the 202
AGM.

On behalf of the Board
ZHU JIE

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
|5 March 2021
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Our Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate governance.
The Board believes that the adoption and adherence to the recognised standards
of corporate governance principles and practices are one of the key factors to
the success of our Company. Good corporate governance provides a framework
for our Group to safeguard the interests of our Shareholders, enhance corporate
value, improve its accountability and transparency in operations, and formulate its

business strategies and policies.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Our Company is committed to achieving and maintaining high standards of
corporate governance consistent with the needs and requirements of our

business and the Shareholders.

Our Company became a listed company since 9 March 2020, the Corporate
Governance Code (“‘Corporate Governance Code” or “CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) was not applicable to our Company before the Listing
Date. The Board has reviewed our Company's corporate governance practices
and is satisfied that our Company has applied and been in compliance with
code provisions (“Code Provision(s)") set out in the Corporate Governance
Code and, where applicable, the recommended best practices of the Corporate
Governance Code, save and except for the deviation from Code Provision A2.1,

during the period from the Listing Date and up to 3| December 2020.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive of our Company should be segregated. Our
Company is of the view that it is beneficial to the management of our Group
that Mr. Zhu Jie, with his extensive expertise in the property management
industry, shall continue in his dual capacity as chairman and chief executive officer.
The balance of power and authority is ensured by the operation of the senior
management and our Board, both of which comprise experienced and high-

caliber individuals.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

Our Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules. Our Company has made specific enquiries with all Directors and
each of them confirmed that they have compiled with the required standards
set out in the Model Code during the period from the Listing Date and up to 31
December 2020.
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Our Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the relevant employees of our Group who are considered likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of our Company or its securities on
no less exacting terms than the Model Code in relation to their dealings in the
securities of our Company pursuant to Code Provision A.6.4 of the Corporate
Governance Code. To the best knowledge and belief of our Directors, all

relevant employees have fully complied with the required standard of such code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Overall Accountability

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and in discharging its corporate
accountability, every Director is required to pursue excellence in the interests
of our Shareholders and fulfil his or her fiduciary duties by applying the required
level of skills, care and diligence to a standard in accordance with the statutory

requirements.

Board Responsibilities and Delegation

Our Company is headed by an effective Board which is responsible for leadership
and control of our Company and formulating strategic directions and monitoring
performance of our business. The executive Director is delegated with the
authorities and responsibilities for the day-to-day management of our Group,
operational and business decisions within the control and delegation framework
of our Group. The non-executive Directors (“NEDs") (including independent
non-executive Directors (INEDs")) of the Company contribute valuable views,

professional opinions and proposals for the Board's deliberation and decisions.

The Board is also responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of our Group. It has carried
out review of the existing implemented systems, including control measures of

financial and operational compliance of our Group.
The Board has established Board committees and has delegated various

responsibilities to these Board committees as set out in their respective terms of

reference.
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Daily management and administration functions are delegated to the
management. The Board delegated various responsibilities to the senior
management of our Company. These responsibilities include implementing
decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating day-to-day operation and
management of our Company in accordance with the management strategies
and plans approved by the Board, formulating and monitoring the operation
and production plans and budgets, and supervising and monitoring the control

systems.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of our Company, including
appointment of new Directors, approval of financial statements, dividend policy,
significant accounting policies, material contracts, significant appointments
such as company secretary and external auditors, terms of reference of Board
committees, major corporate policies such as code of conduct, and other

significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of our Company
and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at our Company's expenses for discharging their duties to our
Company. The Directors having material interest in the matter shall abstain
from voting at such Board meeting and the INEDs with no conflict of interest
shall attend at such meeting to deal with the matters. All Directors ensure
that they can give sufficient attention to discharge their responsibilities to the
affairs of our Company and our Directors have disclosed to our Company the
identity and nature of offices held in any public organisation and other significant

commitments on an annual basis.

Composition of the Board

The Board currently comprise seven Directors including one executive Director,
three NEDs and three INEDs. The biographical details of our Directors and the
senior management of our Group are set out on pages 20 to 31 of this annual
report. The Board members do not have any family, financial, business or other

material/relevant relationship(s) with each other.
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Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As at the date of this annual report, there is one executive Director, namely Mr.
Zhu Jie. He is also the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of our
Company. He is primarily responsible for the overall management and strategic
planning of our Group's business operations. He provides strategic direction to
our Group, takes primary responsibility for ensuring good corporate governance
practices with necessary procedures established and ensures the effective

implementation of corporate strategy and policies.

Non-executive Directors

As at the date of this annual report, there are three NEDs, namely Ms. Zhang
Huigi, Mr. Wang Jinhu and Mr. Liu Zhengiang. Ms. Zhang Huiqi is primarily
responsible for our Group's business development and investor relations. Mr.
Wang Jinhu and Mr. Liu Zhengiang are primarily responsible for providing

strategic advice to the Board.

Independent Non-executive Directors and their Independence

As at the date of this annual report, there are three INEDs including Mr. Xu
Chun, Mr. Feng Zhidong and Mr. Zhou Sheng. Our Company has appointed
a sufficient number of INEDs in accordance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of
the Listing Rules. With Mr. Feng Zhidong's working experience and academic
background in accounting, our Company considers that he possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and related financial

management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Our Company has already received annual confirmation letters of independence
from all the INEDs and each of them have declared fulfilment of all the guidelines
for assessing independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the Board considers that all INEDs are independent as defined in
the Listing Rules.

All our Directors, including the NEDs and INEDs, have entered into service
agreements with our Company for an initial term of three years commencing
on the Listing Date. Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, all

Directors must retire by rotation at least once every three years.
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In compliance with Code Provision A.3.2 of the CG Code, an updated list of our
Directors identifying their role and function are available on the websites of our
Company (www.xingyewulian.com) and the Stock Exchange (www.hkex.com.hk).
Our Company will review the composition of the Board from time to time to
ensure that the Board possesses the appropriate and necessary expertise, skill
and experience to meet the needs of our Group's business and to enhance the

Shareholders’ value.

Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance Records

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year involving active
participation, either in person or through electronic means of communication, of
a majority of Directors. At least 14 days' notice for each regular meeting should
be given to all Directors. All such minutes should be kept by our Company
Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any Director. Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman should
at least annually hold meetings with the INEDs without the presence of other

Directors.

During the Year, regular Board meetings of the Company were held five times
to review, consider and approve, among others, annual and interim results and
to review the business operations, corporate governance and the effectiveness of

internal control systems and risk management of the Group.

Liability Insurance for our Directors
Our Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its
Directors against liabilities arising out of legal action on corporate activities. Such

insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in order
to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. Each newly appointed Director is
provided with necessary induction and information to ensure that he/she has a
proper understanding of our Company's operations and businesses as well as his/

her responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations.
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All Directors should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Internally-facilitated briefings
for Directors would be arranged and training materials or briefings on relevant
topics such as updates on the Listing Rules and relevant financial or accounting

standards would be provided to Directors where appropriate.

During the Year, all Directors (including Mr. Zhu Jie, Ms. Zhang Huigi, Mr.
Wang Jinhu, Mr. Liu Zhengiang, Mr. Feng Zhidong, Mr. Zhou Sheng and Mr. Xu
Chun) participated in continuous professional development activities by reading
newspaper, journals and materials relating to directors’ duties and responsibilities,
corporate governance and regulatory updates. Our Company updates Directors
constantly on the latest developments regarding the Group's business and other
applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. All Directors have provided
to our Company with their training records on a regular basis, and such records
have been maintained by the Company for accurate and comprehensive record

keeping.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee to
assume responsibilities for and to oversee particular aspects of our Company's
affairs. All Board committees of our Company are established with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with their authorities and duties.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee are posted on our Company's website and the Stock

Exchange’s website and are available to Shareholders upon request.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and are empowered to obtain independent’ professional advice at our

Company's expenses in appropriate circumstances.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Feng Zhidong, Mr.
Zhou Sheng and Mr. Xu Chun. Mr. Feng Zhidong, the chairman of the Audit
Committee, possesses the appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and
related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the

Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in compliance with the CG
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are, among others, to review the financial information, oversee
the financial reporting system, risk management and internal control procedures,
and to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the Board on

the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external auditor.

During the Year, two Audit Committee meetings were convened. The Audit

Committee had performed the followings tasks, among others:

(i)  reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31 December 2019 and

interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2020;

(i) reviewed the appropriateness and effectiveness of risk management and

internal control systems for the Year;

(i)  discussed with the auditor of the Company and reviewed their audit

findings;

(iv)  reviewed the auditor's remuneration;

(v)  reviewed all non-audit services provided by the auditors to determine the
provision of such services would affect the independence of the auditors;

and

(vi) performed the corporate governance functions and reviewed the

corporate governance policies and practices.
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After due and careful consideration with all necessary financial information, and
reports from management and the external auditors, the Audit Committee noted
that no suspected fraud or irregularities, significant internal control deficiencies, or
suspected infringement of laws, rules, or regulations had been found in respect of
the Group, and concluded at the Audit Committee meeting held on |5 March
2021 that the risk management and internal control systems were adequate and
effective.

On |5 March 2021, the Audit Committee meeting was convened to review our
Group's consolidated financial statements for the Year, including the accounting
principles and practices, in conjunction with our Company’s external auditor;
and appropriateness and effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems. The Audit Committee endorsed the accounting treatment adopted by
our Company, and the Audit Committee had to the best of its ability assured
itself that the disclosure of the financial information in this annual report has
complied with the applicable accounting standards and the Listing Rules and
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Audit
Committee therefore resolved to recommend for the Board's approval the

consolidated financial statements for the Year.

The Audit Committee also recommended to the Board the reappointment of
Emnst & Young as the auditor of our Company and that the relevant resolution
shall be put forth for it Shareholders’ consideration and approval at the 2021
AGM.
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Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee consists of three INDEs, namely Mr. Zhou Sheng,
Mr. Feng Zhidong, and Mr. Xu Chun. Mr. Zhou Sheng is the chairman of the

Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are in compliance
with the CG Code as set out in Appendix |4 to the Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee include but are not limited to (1) making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;
(2) reviewing and approving the management’'s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives; (3) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors;
(4) reviewing and approving compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management of the Company for any loss or termination of office
or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive; (5) determining the criteria for assessing
employee performance, which should reflect the Company’s business objectives
and targets; and (6) ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates (as

defined in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

During the Year, two Remuneration Committee meetings were held. The
Remuneration Committee had reviewed and approved the remuneration of the

executive Director, the NEDs and INEDs.

Details of our Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 in the Notes to

Financial Statements for the Year.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee consists of three members, being one executive
Director, namely Mr Zhu Jie and two INEDs, namely Mr. Zhou Sheng and Mr. Xu

Chun. Mr. Zhu Jie is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are in compliance with
the CG Code as set out in Appendix 4 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties
of the Nomination Committee include but are not limited to (1) reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including without limitation, gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy; (2) identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; (3) assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and (4) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the chairman and
the chief executive officer, taking into account the Company's corporate strategy
and the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future,

together with the Board, as appropriate.

Nomination Policy

In identifying suitable candidates, the Nomination Committee shall consider
candidates on merit and against the objective criteria such as integrity,
experience, skill and ability to commit time and effort to carry out the duties and
responsibilities, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put to the Board

for decision.

During the Year, one Nomination Committee was held to review the current
structure and composition of the Board and recommended Mr. Liu Zhengiang,
Mr. Wang Jinhu and Mr. Feng Zhidong to retire, and being eligible, offered
themselves for re-election in the Company's annual general meeting held on 10
June 2020 pursuant to Article 84(1) and (2) of the Articles of Association and

Code Provision A4.2 of the Corporate Governance Code.
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Under Article 84(1) and (2) of the Articles of Association, at each AGM, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to one-third) shall retire from office by rotation.
According to Article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or by way of addition to their number shall
hold office only until the next following AGM, and shall then be eligible for re-
appointment. Every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every

three years by rotation or offers herself/himself for re-election.

Board Diversity Policy

Our Company recognises and embraces the benefit of having a diverse Board
and considers the increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of our strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. Our Company has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
the objective and approach to achieve and maintain diversity of the Board (the

“Board Diversity Policy").

The Nomination Committee is delegated by the Board to be responsible
for reviewing and ensuring the effectiveness and compliance with the Board
Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee will consider the Board diversity
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and

length of service.

The Nomination Committee shall consider candidates on Board appointments
on merit and against objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits and
diversity on the Board. Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the
Board's composition, our Company is satisfied that the composition of the Board

satisfies the Board Diversity Policy.
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Corporate Governance Functions EERRAE

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the Code EESRERITREERTAISFAIRX
Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. During the Year, the Board had reviewed our S D.3. [ {RFTE M EBEEE - RAFE - &
Company's corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous EEEBEHARANCEERRELT
professional development of Directors and senior management, our Company's B EBEEREREEENIZIRGEESR
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and XEREBEN  ARAIRETEEREE
our Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate  #i7E 7 H MK R &R &K AR BE 1
Governance Report. ZERTAMNBERARRABEERR

HEAMEEE

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS EEHFERE
The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board committee TR AFEEETGNEFLEDTE
meetings during the Year are set out in the table below: BELEEEHNHFRH

Attendance/Number of Meetings held
HERER/ CETEERY

Annual Extraordinary
Audit Remuneration Nomination General General

Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting Meeting

ENZEE HMZEE REZEE RRATAE RREHNAE

Executive Director HITEE

Mr. Zhu Jie AL 505 NJA N/A I/] I/l Il
TER TEm

Non-executive Directors FHTEE

Ms, Zhang Huiqj REHLL 505 NIA N/A N/A I I/
TER TEm TER

Mr. Wang Jinhu B o 505 NIA N/A N/A I I/
TEm TEm TER

Mr. Liu Zhengjang i 45 NIA N/A N/A I I/
Gyl TEm TER

Independent non-executive Directors ~ BUFH{TEE

Mr. Xu Chun fRERE 505 n n I I I/

Mr. Feng Zhidong BEREE 505 0 n N/A I I/l

TER
Mr. Zhou Sheng RABEE 505 0 n Il I I/l

F R 2020 BB REEEER DA 67
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REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

The remuneration paid/payable to our Company's external auditors, Ernst &
Young, in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the Year amounted
to RMB,300,000 and RMB15,000, respectively. An analysis of the remuneration
paid to the external auditors of our Company, Ermnst & Young, in respect of audit

services and non-audit services for the Year is set out below:

Service Category PR % % 51

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

¥ B B 57 A

RAFE » AR BB R K IEZE
RIS E AT, AR AR R INEE A B A &
KEETRMEHBMOFEMD R AARE
1,300,0007C & A R#& 15,0007 © RASF
B BEEBRE RIERERBEF AR
A FNE A BB &2 ok & BT A 35 75 BT Y 37 B
DITEHIAT -

Fees Paid/Payable
B EBNER

RMB’000
AR®T

Audit Services ZBURTS 1,300
Non-audit Services FEZBARTS

— Review on continuing connected transactions —BEREEERS I5
Total et 1,315

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Statements and Financial Reporting

Our Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of our Group that give a true and fair view in
accordance with applicable accounting standards and Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Our Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the
announcements in relation to the consolidated financial statements on annual
and interim results of our Group are published in a timely manner, within three
months and two months respectively of the year end and the half-year period

end.
The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of our Company on the

consolidated financial statements of our Group are set out in “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 77 to 84.
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Going Concern

Our Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
our Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Our Directors are of the view
that our Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate for our Group to

adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognises its overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems including conducting
an annual review on their effectiveness for achieving long-term sustainable
development of our Group. The risk management and internal control systems,
under a defined management structure with limits of authority, are designed
for our Group to identify and manage the significant risks to pursue its business
objectives, safeguard its assets against unauthorised use or disposition, enhance
effectiveness and efficiency of its operations, ensure the maintenance of proper
accounting records for reliable financial reporting, and ensure compliance with
relevant laws and regulations. Such systems are designed to manage our risk
exposures, primarily our operational risk, legal risk and liquidity risk, rather than
eliminate risks of failure in the achievement of our Group's business objectives
and can only provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss.

The Board is responsible for the determination of our Group's risk profile within
its acceptable tolerance levels in business operation, oversight of management
in the design, implementation and monitoring of overall risk management
process from risk identification, risk assessment, establishment of appropriate risk
responses and regular risk evaluation and monitoring, so as to ensure the systems

are effectively established and maintained.

The internal audit department is responsible for performing independent review
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems. The internal audit department examined key issues in relation to the
accounting practices and all material controls and provided its findings and

recommendations for improvement to the Audit Committee.
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The Audit Committee assists the Board in establishing formal arrangements to

ECZEEMESTEHITEALH

0

apply financial reporting and interal control principles in accounting and financial K& st &0 7% 5 5 e R B 5 R i kA
matters to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules and all relevant laws and ZH|RE| - AERESF EMRBRMAE

regulations. The Board has authorised the Audit Committee to be responsible
for the oversight of our Group's risk management and internal control systems
and reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on a yearly basis. Such review

covers all important aspects of supervision, including financial, operational and

HEZERINER - EFGEREERZ
Bg HAEAREEEASENER
EIE R AR R BHZRASNE
MIEEITFERE - ZRTREMBE

compliance monitoring. Subject to recommendation from the Audit Committee, ENERTHE  BRMKEE  EFE
our Company will appoint external internal control advisor to perform periodic EREHERE TENEZZEEMNH
review of our Company's internal control system to evaluate the effectiveness ~ BE R1& + AR BIEZEINFRAZIEH|

and formulate plans and recommendations for improvement of its internal

control measures and policies.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the internal audit
report, reviewed the risk management and internal control systems for the
Year, and considered that the risk management and internal control systems
of our Group are effective and adequate. The review of the risk management
and internal control systems of our Group is an ongoing process and the
Board maintains a continuing commitment to strengthen our Group's control

environment and processes.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct (“Code of Conduct”) for its
Directors and relevant employees to ensure that both Directors and relevant
employees are kept abreast of and fulfil a set of defined ethical obligations and
appropriate behaviours when conducting businesses and/or performing their
duties. The Company has also established and implemented procedures for (i)
collection, evaluation and publication of information to ensure timely reporting
of inside information to the Board and the Shareholders; and (ii) responding to
external enquiries about the Group's affairs. With a view to identifying, handling
and disseminating inside information in compliance with the SFO, procedures
including preclearance on dealing in Company's securities by designated
Director, notification of blackout period and securities dealing restrictions to
relevant Directors and employees, identification of project by code name and
dissemination of information on a need-to-know basis have been implemented
by the Group to guard against possible mishandling of inside information within

the Group.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board process, as well
as communication among board members. With effect from 9 September 2020,
Ms. Lu Shuang has resigned as the company secretary and Ms. Leung Ka Ying has
been appointed as our Company's secretary. Ms. Leung has confirmed that she
has attended not less than |5 hours of relevant professional training during the
Year. Her biography is set out on page 31 of this annual report in the section

headed “Board of Directors and Senior Management”.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining a clear, timely and effective
communication with the Shareholders and investors of our Company. The Board
also recognises that effective communication with our Company's investors is
critical in establishing investor confidence and to attract new investors. Therefore,
our Group is committed to maintaining a high degree of transparency to ensure
the Shareholders and the investors of our Company will receive accurate, clear,
comprehensive and timely information of our Group through the publication
of annual reports, interim reports, announcements and circulars. Any significant
events of our Group fall to be disclosed will be published in a timely, accurate
and complete manner through the websites of our Company and the Stock
Exchange, so as to safeguard our Shareholders’ rights of information and

participation.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting/Right to call
an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more members
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of our Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of our Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the secretary of our Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist himself may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist by our

Company.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at Shareholders’
meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new resolutions at
the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law, However,
Shareholders may request our Company to convene an extraordinary general
meeting following the procedures under Article 58 of the Articles of Association

as set out above.

Pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles of Association, no person other than a
Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general meeting unless a
notice signed by a member (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified
to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention
to propose such person for election and also a notice signed by the person to
be proposed of his/her willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
head office or at the registration office. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under Article 85 will commence on the day after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven days prior to the date of such general meeting and the minimum length of
the period during which such notices to our Company may be given will be at

least seven days.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person for election as a Director at a
general meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice at our Company's principal
place of business in Hong Kong at 24th Floor, Wyndham Place, 40-44 Wyndham
Street, Central, Hong Kong. The written notice must state the full name of the
person proposed for election as a Director, including the person’s biographical
details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the
Shareholder concerned and that person indicating his/her willingness to be

elected.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send written
enquiries to our Company. Our Company will not normally deal with verbal or

anonymous enquiries.

A Shareholder may send an enquiry to the Board at the Company's principal
place of business in Hong Kong at 24th Floor, Wyndham Place, 40-44 Wyndham
Street, Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board in written form, which
shall state the nature of the enquiry and the reason for making the enquiry. In
addition, Shareholders can contact Tricor Investor Services Limited, the Hong

Kong share registrar of our Company, for any questions about their shareholdings.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
On 7 February 2020, our Company adopted the amended and revised

memorandum and articles of association, effective on the Listing Date. Since
then, our Company has not made any changes to its memorandum and articles
of association. An up to date version of our Company's memorandum and
articles of association is also available on our Company’s website and the Stock

Exchange's website.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board considers that having active communications with our Shareholders
and investors is important and this will enhance transparency and clarity in public
disclosures by our Company. Any significant events of our Group fall to be
disclosed will be published in a timely, accurate and complete manner through
the websites of our Company and the Stock Exchange, so as to safeguard our

Shareholders' rights of information and participation.

F R 2020

MEESRHES
BRRAIFRENEESSRLNEMNEH
NERPEAZEXERNRR - RARAE
TEREAFSEZNER -

BRI EMEESRIZEHANET
FREEADNRFTELEEME - it A
EBPIREMHA0-445 ERHEH 024
12 - ZEESHNANRETHER N
BERBEEHRIEH o I - BREIRA
RAEMNBAEREMERNRRREFTER
MBFELEEEEFELARAFE
FIE

BEEXHNENR
ARBERZE_ZEF A LHEME
BT REBFTMMEBZERAMEMAA - I
RETHBER - Bt * ARARIWRE
HAZKER KM R AL FAER -
AN B4R A AR K K A B A R BT R AR
AJFEANA A A8 uh K B AR FTAB i &5 68 o

HERRREREERE REEH
3

EERRA MEERRRREEZE
BLAEE  AAFRGAEERHENIL
FARMEREE - AEEEFET RS
MERFESARE - EBATEY )
HRAR R BB 2 B IR - AR
R SR 0 AN S BRI 2 B2 -

BB REEEER DA

ORXR

N7
7\

D



XXX

X

7\

O

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
o TRERERE

\V/
X

Our Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders RRABB N BFERROFEHFE L
and in particular, through annual general meetings and other general meetings. HEBARRBFAGMNHEMBERREAR
At the annual general meeting, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) ERE -RBRFBAFAREG L EF (3
are available to meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries. The notice of — EF (2EM) ) i BRI B 2155
the general meetings together with relevant documents will be sent out to ZBEH RRBAFAN2BEEERMEBAX
Shareholders at least 20 business days before the annual general meeting and HHRIRRBFASBTRBRIZLR
at least 10 business days before all other general meetings. The notice contains 0B ¥ BAIMMRRIEL - MATAEEM

details on the procedures for voting by poll as well as other relevant information BRERXGAREDZI0ELEBR ° %

related to the proposed resolutions. REBEABURESANRRNEFF
B UREZEZR ARG H AR
58 -
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POLICIES RELATING TO SHAREHOLDERS

Dividend Policy

This dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) sets out the principles and guidelines
that the Company will apply when considering the declaration and payment of
dividends to the Shareholders.

The Company may, subject to the Cayman Companies Law, from time to time in
general meeting declare dividends in any currency to be paid to the Shareholders
but no dividend shall be declared in excess of the amount recommended by the
Board. The Board may from time to time determine to pay to the Shareholders
such interim dividends as appear to the Board to be justified by the profits of
the Company and in particular (but without prejudice to the generality of the
foregoing) if at any time the share capital of the Company is divided into different
classes, the Board may determine to pay such interim dividends in respect of
those shares in the capital of the Company which confer on the holders thereof
deferred or non-preferential rights as well as in respect of those shares which
confer on the holders thereof preferential rights with regard to dividend and
provided that the Board acts bona fide the Board shall not incur any responsibility
to the holders of shares conferring any preference for any damage that they
may suffer by reason of the payment of an interim dividend on any shares having
deferred or non-preferential rights and may also pay any fixed dividend which
is payable on any shares of the Company half-yearly or on any other dates,

whenever such profits, in the opinion of the Board, justifies such payment.

According to the Dividend Policy, in deciding whether to propose a dividend and
in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account, inter alia:
(@)  Financial results of the Group;

(b)  Shareholders' interests;

(c)  Current and projected financial performance of the Group;

(d)  Growth and investment opportunities;

(e)  Other macroeconomic and microeconomic factors; and

(f)  Other factors that the Board may deem relevant from time to time.
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The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right EESMHERERNREBERILIRE A
in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or cancel the M— RBHBISREBRER - E5] - &
Dividend Policy at any time. B, SHEUER BBUR ©

DISCLAIMER REEH

The contents of the section headed “Shareholders’ Rights” are for reference and [IREREN ] -2 ATEHRZ2ERER
disclosure compliance purposes only. The information does not represent and BE ZFEERATIREKETERER
should not be regarded as legal or other professional advice from our Company BHAARIMBREEL 2 EEZSHMEE
to the shareholders. Shareholders should seek their own independent legal BER BREMEMERRR ZENBIT
or other professional advice as to their rights as shareholders. Our Company SRBIEAEIHEMBEEER - XAF]
disclaims all liabilities and losses incurred by the shareholders in reliance on any W AR R R KR8 [ AR ERAE A | — &0 P&
contents of the section headed “Shareholders’ Rights". FRREMEEACEERIBLREE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B R BE RS

Ernst & Young SR ES Tel B5E: +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower BREPEANEE1RE Fax {£K: +852 2868 4432
ﬁ i 1 Tim Mei Avenue hIERE2212 ey.com
7 Central, Hong Kong
Independent auditor’s report BYZHERE

To the shareholders of Xingye Wulian Service Group Co. Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Xingye Wulian Service
Group Co. Ltd. (the “Company") and its subsidiaries (the “Group") set out on
pages 85 to 191, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 3| December 2020, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSASs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code™), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that

context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance
of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated

financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contq)

Key audit matter

BREITER

FARESTEE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMETEXRNMEERRETSE

Recoverability of trade receivables and contract assets 5.5 EW 7B R &4 & EH o 5 1#

As at 3|1 December 2020, the carrying amounts of trade
receivables and contract assets were RMB38,394,000 and
RMB 10,642,000, respectively, which totally accounted for
approximately 2% of the current assets of the Group.

RIZE-_TF+_RA=+—H BEFEREFEREL
EENBRESED R A/AR®E38394000t RARE
10,642,0007C * &HAE BEBEREEEL12% -

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables and
contract assets as a key audit matter due to the significance of
the financial impact to the consolidated financial statements
and the significant judgements exercised by the management
in estimating the expected credit loss of trade receivables and
contract assets, including the existence of disputes, historical
payment record, forward-looking factors and any other
available information that may impact the estimated expected
credit loss.

B E S REFIERENEEN A W EEER A —I8
BRREZFR AREIGAMBEHRRAMEEBRERE
R BERERFHEEZRRFIBARANEENTARE
EBERRAFLERAE  BEREGFEMY - BEX
428k EEERRA R EGATAREEEENE
A EAR AT S EFY o

We obtained an understanding of how management assessed
the expected credit loss of trade receivables and contract
assets, and evaluated the design of key control relating to
the monitoring of the recoverability of trade receivables and
contract assets;
BMTHEEEFHEIRRFERANEERNEER
EBENTANLFEEEERESRRFTEARGNEE
AT UG [B] 14 B B SR 4% Il HE HE O AR A

We evaluated and tested the methodologies and data/
parameters used by management, including the ageing of trade
receivables and contract assets, historical loss information,
probability of default, and expected loss;
RMFERASREREBMATEREE 28 BREE
VKBRSV EERKR - BEBEEN  BOXR
T

We reviewed the management'’s assessment of the forward-
looking factors, such as the anticipation of the customers'
operation, forecast industry situation and overall economic
conditions;

R EREHAREEZRNE  fInEEFES
EVTRER - TTERTRTER MR |

We executed substantive analytical review procedure by
analysing the fluctuations of the balances and the turnover days
of trade receivables and contract assets;
BPIMITERDITERRIER - TERDE ZEUGR
R A WEERR L EABREHRBENR ;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contq)

Key audit matter

HRENER

Recoverability of trade receivables and contract assets £ .5 EW 7B R &4 EEH 7 B K 1+

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A% BT

FREITEE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMETERRNMEEBRETEE

Disclosures of determination of the recoverability of trade
receivables and contract assets are included in note 2.4
“Impairment of financial assets”, note 3 “Significant accounting
judgements and estimates”, note |7 “Trade receivables”
and note 19 “Contract assets” to the consolidated financial
statements.

HETE B B FEMGRIA M A #) & B P W E 1 By I R SR TR LS O
R MR 24 SREERE ] - M3 RS HE
Kflat] - M 171 B 5 RUGERIE | MM 9T a EE] -

We checked, on a sample basis, the subsequent settlement of
trade receivables and contract assets against cash receipts and
the related supporting documentation; and
BAREGEEEH RS WE RAEBERAX M REE S
EUKIAR A WEENBREEITR : &

We also focused on the adequacy of the disclosures of the
trade receivables and contract assets in the consolidated
financial statements.

BT IGRE M BHREPEZRUGRIER G NEENKE
TR -

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE

ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,

other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that

there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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B2 BE RS

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to

do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting

process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.

F 3R 2020
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Contd)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.
S Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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B2 BE RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Contd)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a matenial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

F 3R 2020
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B BE RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Contd)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh

the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's

report is Siu Fung Terence Ho.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

|5 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SGeEakEMEEKER

HE_Z-_TF+-RA=+—HILFE

Year ended 3| December 2020

=<

2020 2019
—E-EE —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFIT
REVENUE Wz 5 213,188 184,122
Cost of sales SHEE B AR 6 (126,449) (105,470)
Gross profit EA 86,739 78,652
Other income, other gains and losses HAWA « Hfbias & 5 9,435 1,981
&8
Selling and marketing expenses THE KL TR S (1,713) (1,380)
Administrative expenses TH R (33,353) (32254)
Impairment losses on financial and contract assets SRR ENEERERSIE (214) (I
Finance costs BT AR 7 (174) (84)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRB AT R 6 60,720 46,904
Income tax expense FEBIR < 10 (17,217) (IL731)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRER 43,503 35,173
Attributable to: ARG -
Owners of the parent [SYNSIEZS PN 43,503 35,1173
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hit2EER
Other comprehensive loss that may be iR ER SR
reclassified to profit or loss in ERRZHMEE
subsequent periods: B8
Exchange difference on translation of BMEBINEBEEZ (1,243) (3)
foreign operations b5 =5
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR FAHM2EEE - MR (1,243) (3)
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX BIA
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREEBARE 42,260 35,170
FOR THE YEAR
Attributable to: AT RELS -
Owners of the parent [SYNSIEZS PN 42,260 35,170
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREBRESERFEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EhEREF
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic and diluted BERE#E
— For profit for the year (RMB cents) —FRRMN(ARED) 12 11.41 1172

F 3R 2020
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31 December 2020
—ECTFE+-A=+—H

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

2020 2019
—ECEF —ET-NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMBR'000
M AR®T T AREFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Property, plant and equipment L E Y 13 2,072 2,191
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 4,201 2,676
Other intangible assets Hih @\ & E 16 302 -
Deferred tax assets IRIETRIBE B |4 566 666
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 7,141 5,533
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Trade receivables B 5 FIE 17 38,394 18,237
Contract assets AHEE 19 10,642 11,412
Prepayments, other receivables and FERIFRIR - A FEUGRIR
other assets REAMEE 18 4911 7672
Cash and cash equivalents RekBHEEEY 20 369,166 173,147
Total current assets MEVEEBE 423,113 210,468
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables B SN IR 2| 25,282 18,223
Other payables and accruals HE e FIE R ERTE 22 35,656 45,739
Contract liabilities sH8aE 23 40,235 29,402
Tax payable eI 4,966 4528
Provisions B 24 834 22
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 1,104 1,859
Total current liabilities mENA B 108,077 99,773
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 315,036 110,695
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEABRRBERS
LIABILITIES 322,177 116,228
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Provisions B 24 1,251 33
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 3,992 2,195
Deferred tax liability EERIBEAE 14 590 —
Total non-current liabilities EmB B EBRE 5,833 2,228
Net assets BEFE 316,344 1 14,000
EQUITY g
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BRREE AREER
Share capital fi% 25 3,572 =
Reserves i 26 312,772 114,000
Total equity - EaC] 316,344 114,000
Zhu Jie Zhang Huigqi
REIH
Director Director
EE

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REEREER

Year ended 3| December 2020

Share
capital

S
RMB'000
AEETT
Note 25
HE2s

Share
premium*

R RE:
RMB'000
ARRT 7R

Note 26(i)
H&E26(i)

Merger
reserve *

Vi 1
RMB'000
ARETR
Note 26(ii)
HizE26(ii)

HE_Z-_TF+-RA=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Parent

BOAERARE

Statutory
Capital surplus  Exchange
reserve*  reserve*  reserve
EERH
EnfiE fifer  ERRE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR
Note 26(ii)  Note 26(iii)
HiEE2eGi)  FYRE26Gii)

Other
reserve*

Kbt
RMB'000
N A
Note 26(iv)

HiEE26(iv)

Retained
profits*

REEA
RMB'000

Total
equity

B4R
RMB'000

ARBTR  ARMTR

At | January 2019 R-F-NE-A-A - - 55000 18622 5162 - 1,890 40542 121216
Profitfor the year Emg| - - - - - - - 1173 3173
Other comprehensive loss ENEMPEEE
for the year
Bxchange differences on BERIFRELL
transation of foreign operations [ % £ - - - - - B) - - 0
Total comprehensive income - FRZANAEE
for the year = = = = = ) = 3BI73 3,170
Dividend paid ERRE - - - - - - - hes) (e
lsue of shares (note 25) Bl %17 (it2s) - 89,755 L - - - - - 89755
Acquisition of equity interests AEERERNRRE
by the Group from then YiEkiE
shareholders - - (7108%4) (18622) - - - - (89516)
Transfer from retained profts EREREER = = = = 3407 = = (3427) =
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
N - 89,755 (15894) - 8589 ) 1,890 29663 14000
At | January 2020 \=2-%F-A-A - 89,755 (15894) - 8589 ) 1,890 29663 14000
Proft for the year Emgt| - - - - - - - 43503 43503
Other comprehensive loss ENE2EER
for the year
Exchange differences on BERINSHEL L
translation of foreign operations [ 788 - - - - - (1243) - = (1243)
Total comprehensive income - FRZERALE
for the year - - - - - (1243) - 43503 4260
Capialisation ksue (note 25)  AAMLEFT (HiEs) 2675 (2679) - - - - - - -
New issue of shares from RERAREER
iniial public offering (note 25)  #1AR(A (Bf3E25) /A& - - - - - - 178408
Share issue expenses BhEIRL = (10,164) = = = = = = (10,164)
2000 interim dividend paid BfZE-Z58 RS - - < - = - (8240) (8240)
Transfer from retained profits EREREET = = = = 4509 = = (4529) =
At 31 December 2020 N
S = 3572 254507 (15,894) - 13,118 (1,246) 1,890 60,397 316,344
& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB312,772,000 in & ZERBEBREES N _E_TF+ =

the consolidated statements of financial position as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMBI 14,000,000).

F 3R 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

Year ended 3| December 2020
BE-_Z-_TF+_A=1+—ALFE

2020 2019
ZE-EF —T-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
isE ARMT T ARETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETBRERERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax FRA5EAT 4 60,720 46,904
Adjustments for: AT SBELAE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERRBITE 6 705 660
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 6 369 328
Amortisation of other intangible asset Hip & Eg 6 75 -
Finance costs BT 7 174 84
Interest income FEMA (6,335) =
Impairment losses on trade receivables B HRYGIERE R
and contract assets BERERE 6 214 1
55,922 47987
Increase in trade receivables B 5 URIEE N (20,379) (4412)
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets BHEERD,/ () 778 (3,086)
Decrease in prepayments, other receivables FNTOR - Hith YRR
and other assets FEMEERD 2,761 1,047
Decrease in inventories FERD - 124
Increase in trade payables B HERNRIELM 7,059 6,789
(Decrease)/increase in other payable H b B F0E M ERT
and accruals BRARD),/18m (15,438) 18967
Increase in contract liabilities BRBEL 10,833 1,335
Cash generated from operations REmBHRS 41,536 68751
Income tax paid ARIEIEET (15,465) (12,003)
Net cash flows from operating activities RETHMERENE
JHEE 26,071 56,748
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETEHFMBHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of other intangible asset EEHMETAE (377) -
Purchases of items of property, plant BEMZE  BEK&E
and equipment BH (586) (553)
Net cash flows used in investing activities REEREFTH
REmMEFHE (963) (553)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REEHERER
Year ended 3| December 2020
BE-Z-ZF+-_A=+-HILHFE

2020 2019
ZE-EF —T-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
FisE ARBTR ARBTT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REZBMEHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of equity interests in a subsidiary —HERBARIRE RN
from then shareholders e e - (89,516)
Proceeds from issue of shares BRIDBEITAI{S IR 178,488 89,755
Dividends paid BEARE (8,240) (42,625)
Share issue expenses paid BRI BT TR X (5,038) (2,065)
Interest received from IPO proceeds BRARBEMEHRIE
WBEFE 6,335 -
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities MEESEE,(FTA)
Heng 171,545 (44,451)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERBASZEYEM
EQUIVALENTS FHE 196,653 11,744
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FRERASFED 173,147 161,397
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EXEBTE ¥ (634) 6
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EXRERREEEY
AT END OF YEAR 369,166 173,147
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERRESENMER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Pk}
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the REMBARARAT
consolidated statements of financial position ReRkHAe%EEM 20 369,166 173,147
F$R 2020 EEYBREEEERAR 89
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31 December 2020
—ECTFE+-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
Xingye Waulian Service Group Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) is an exempted

company with limited liability incorporated under the laws of the Cayman
Islands on 12 August 2019. The registered office of the Company is
located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KYI-1'111, Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company have been listed in
connection with the Company's initial public offering on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 9
March 2020 (the “Listing Date").

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company became
the holding company of the subsidiaries now comprising the Group upon

completion of the reorganisation in 2019.

The Group is principally engaged in property management and value-added

services and property engineering services.

In the opinion of the director of the Company, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Foison Amber Development Limited, a limited
liability company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"). The
ultimate holding company of the Company is Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited, as
the trustee of the Blossom Trust, a discretionary family trust established in
BVI on 16 August 2019 by Ms. Huang Yanping (“Ms. Huang") as the settlor,
with Ms. Zhang Huigi (“Ms. Zhang") acting as the protector and Ms. Zhang
and her descendants being the discretionary beneficiaries. Ms. Zhang is also

a non-executive director of the Company.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2020
—E-THE+-A=+—H

I. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Conta) 1. AEIREEER @)
Information about subsidiaries BB ATNER

AATHBAR BRI T -

Percentage of equity

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows:

Place and date of Nominal value interests attributable
incorporation/  of issued ordinary/ to the Company
registration and registered  AAFEERERAL  Principal Legal form
Company name place of business share capital Direct Indirect  business of entities
RHRER /R BRTEER/
e REMAREREYE  CERRANEE E# IERK ERER
Siu Wing Holdings Limited BV United States Dollars 100 - Investment =
7 January 2019 ("USD")50,000 holding
KAERBRAT] RERIES  S0000ET([ET)) 100 - RAER -
“Z-N%-BtH
Xingye |OT Company Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Dollars - 100 Investment -
[ April 2019 ("HK$") 10,000 holding
EXMBARAT Bk 10000787 - 00 BERER -
“2-NFRAT-A (I%&7))

Henan Xingye Internet of Things People’s Republic RMB100,000,000 = 100  Property Company of
Management Technology Co, Ltd* of China (“PRC")/ management limited liability
("Xingye IOT Management”) Mainland China

20 October 1999

BRI AT RARAR PEARANE  ARE1000000007T - 00 MxEE ARAMAA

([EEMEEE]) () /hEn
—NANETAZTH

Henan Wuxiang Intelligent PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 = 100 Property Company of
Technology Co, Ltd* 9 August 2017 engineering limited liability
("Wuxiang Intelligent”)

LA T hE/PEME  AR%00000007 - 0 HETE EREAAT
(M5gE) —2-—tF\ANA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 3R Y =
31 December 2020
“ECTFE+-A=+—H

I. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (o9 |. ATREEER (%)

Information about subsidiaries (Contd)

Company name

e

Place and date of
incorporation/
registration and
place of business
ML/ TR
REHAREESE

Nominal value

of issued ordinary/
registered

share capital
BRATEER/
ERRRANEE

BEMBRARNER (&)

Percentage of equity
interests attributable
to the Company
ARARERER AL

Direct Indirect

Ef 5t

Principal Legal form

business of entities

IERH EREA

Henan Xingye Internet of Things PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100 Intermediary Company of
Information Consulting Co, Ltd* 20 April 2018 leasing services  limited liability
("Xingye Consulting”)

AREXMSESRHERAA hE/PEME  ARH100000007 00 PNEERE ARERLLH
(T&xa%A1) “2-\FEA=TA

Henan Xingzheng Hotel PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100  Hotel and catening  Company of
Management Co, Ltd* 9 July 2020 operations limited liability

AEREEEERERAR hE/mERE  AREI00000007T - 00 BEREHKEE BREMLH

“Z-ZELANRA

* R BIREM A 2 A AR R RO RE AT
WXL HEXEBA/ARE
B ERIR D A M X R T
TRV E B

i The English names of the companies registered in the PRC represent the
best efforts made by the management of the Company in directly translating
the Chinese names of these companies as no English names have been
registered.
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2.1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2020
—ECEF+ZRA=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"), which comprise all
standards and interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB"), and International Accounting Standards
("IASs") and Standing Interpretations Committee interpretations approved
by the Intermational Accounting Standards Committee that remain in effect,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are

rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
as if the Group had always been in existence throughout both years
presented, rather than from the date when the Company became the

holding company pursuant to the reorganisation.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2020.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to

direct the relevant activities of the investee).
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B 75 R 3R Y =
31 December 2020
—E-EF+ZRA=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Contq)

Basis of consolidation (Contd)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,

including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such

control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.1

2.2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2020
—ECEF+ZRA=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Contq)

Basis of consolidation (Contd)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity

transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained and
(iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the

related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 and the following revised IFRSs for the first time for the current year's

financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid- | 9-Related Rent Concessions

(early adopted)

Amendments to IAS | Definition of Material
and IAS 8

F 3R 2020
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 3R Y =
31 December 2020
“ECTFE+-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2.2 ETBERBEZSE (2)

DISCLOSURES (Cont4)

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for Financial

Reporting 2018 and the revised IFRSs are described below:

(@) Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 20/8 (the
“Conceptual Framework™) sets out a comprehensive set of concepts
for financial reporting and standard setting, and provides guidance for
preparers of financial statements in developing consistent accounting
policies and assistance to all parties to understand and interpret the
standards. The Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on
measurement and reporting financial performance, new guidance
on the derecognition of assets and liabilities, and updated definitions
and recognition criteria for assets and liabilities. It also clarifies the
roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement uncertainty in
financial reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and
none of the concepts contained therein override the concepts or
requirements in any standard. The Conceptual Framework did not
have any significant impact on the financial position and performance

of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2020
—ECEF+ZRA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Cont4)

©®)

F 3R 2020

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on
the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an
integrated set of activities and assets to be considered a business,
it must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
output. A business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable of acquiring
the business and continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus
is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus
on goods or services provided to customers, investment income or
other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and introduce an optional fair value concentration test to
permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to transactions or other events that occurred on or
after | January 2020. The amendments did not have any impact on

the financial position and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 3R Y =
31 December 2020
“ECTFE+-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2.2 B BRERBEC2EH )

DISCLOSURES (Contd)

()  Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 address issues affecting () BIRMBERELEREIR
financial reporting in the period before the replacement of an existing P&t HERI S8 39 5% K BURR B 75
interest rate benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR"). WELRE7S (BRI EE
The amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge FRAB R ERRN X ([ER
accounting to continue during the period of uncertainty before the = BRI RELE L
introduction of the alternative RFR. In addition, the amendments RIEVERRRI A S 3RS R © 3%
require companies to provide additional information to investors ZEFTIRMHAIEEAZERER
about their hedging relationships which are directly affected by these i 1| 2 AT @ N RETE BRI AR AR
uncertainties. The amendments did not have any impact on the EITH RS ER ERUE
financial position and performance of the Group as the Group does B BEAN - SR FIERTIRE AT
not have any interest rate hedging relationships. ARREERBABIZET

HEE AR ER T ENLIPRIR
HYBESNE L - NS B &
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B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2020
—ECEF+ZRA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Cont4)

(d)

©

F 3R 2020

Amendment to IFRS |6 provides a practical expedient for lessees to
elect not to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic. The
practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a
direct consequence of the pandemic and only if (i) the change in
lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change; (i) any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and
(iii) there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of
the lease. The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after | June 2020 with earlier application permitted and shall

be applied retrospectively.

During the year ended 3| December 2020, no rent concessions

were granted by the lessors as a result of the covid-19 pandemic.

Amendments to IAS | and IAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature
or magnitude of information, or both. The amendments did not have
any significant impact on the financial position and performance of

the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs 2.3 CHEMR1E 14 AR 4 R KD B PR B
R & 2E Al

REEW RN XS B ER NER T

BB 518 14 5K A 0 B 5T R AT 5T BB

B R R -

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that have

been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

ARG RS ERR3S (B 1)

AREHAEENRT  BRE:
ERIES  ARAEESER
#15 ERIHRSEARER
AR REENE 6% (B3] 4)

(BeERZELy
(MEEEYE-2-RR)

Amendments to IFRS 3
Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39 and IFRS 7
IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

Reference to the Conceptual Fframework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2!

Amendments to IFRS |0 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an BRHHREERE 0R R (REZEERENASAE
and IAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture! BRSERE 8 (B A) CEBMEEL LA
IFRS |7 Insurance Contracts® BB B AR ERIE 7 (Reaty

Amendments to IFRS |7
Amendments to |AS |

Amendments to IAS |6

Amendments to |AS 37

Annual Improvements to

Insurance Contracts®®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current®

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?

Amendments to IFRS [, IFRS 9,

BREHRSERR 7% (B3]
AR EsTENR % (B1)

AR ENS 165 (67T

AEEHENEE (B50)

(AR REE-F-N\F

(RBabP:
(DR RS IRA R

(% BELRE:
(ERERRAZ TG
(BEEAN-BHANZAEY

AR ERE 5 (BE)

IFRSs 20/8-2020 lllustrative Examples accompanying FCECREENMOEENE) ARG REEARIE
IFRS 16, and IAS 412 AR ERR o8
Bt 2 SR 7 B

SETERE4 5
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs (Contd) 2.3 B EH#R1E & R & Y B PR B
i%iﬁiﬁﬁu (&)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 202 | RZBZ—F—H—Hs &R
PRH) S IR AR
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022 2 RZE__F—A—HzZ®EH
ﬁAEI’JEF“ HARI AR
S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023 2 RZE_=F—A—Hzz®’&H
WRH) S E IR AR
i No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption & SR B B FEE - ERTER
!
> As a consequence of the amendments to IAS I, International Interpretation 2 HARBIBR e ERE 5% (EF
5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of $)&!5§u§*§%5ﬂ((ﬁj J?yzf/f_ﬁ'_ﬁ
a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised ZH—EAANHBEIRELEE
in October 2020 to align the corresponding wording with no change in EXBEHEMG ) BN
conclusion T _BE+ F#EITER J//(@*E
FEFE R IR TS — B A em T2
& As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in October 2020, G HRR-ZZE_ZTF+AEMGH
IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits B PR B 75 ¥ 5 AR RIZE 1 7 5% (85T
insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning ) - BRI S LRI F 455
before | January 2023 ERTABEBRERHE - 7RI
ARRZBE==F—A—B 2l

Fta e & E HR A ER &5 £
RI55 39 55% 1 JF BB B 7 ¥R &5 2E A

F95%
Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be applicable FEHEARASENZSERI®
to the Group is described below. WELRNE—FERNT -
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs (Contq)

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle
for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities
and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or
IFRIC-Int 21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed in
a business combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to IAS
37 or IFRIC-Int 2| respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify
for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from | January 2022. Since the amendments
apply prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date
is on or after the date of first application, the Group will not be affected by

these amendments on the date of transition.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs (Contq)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS |6 address issues
not dealt with in the previous amendments which affect financial reporting
when an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative
RFR. The Phase 2 amendments provide a practical expedient to allow
the effective interest rate to be updated without adjusting the carrying
amount when accounting for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the change is a
direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform and the new
basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent
to the previous basis immediately preceding the change. In addition, the
amendments permit changes required by the interest rate benchmark
reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains or
losses that could arise on transition are dealt with through the normal
requirements of IFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness.
The amendments also provide a temporary relief to entities from having
to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated
as a risk component. The relief allows an entity, upon designation of
the hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable requirement is
met, provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to
become separately identifiable within the next 24 months. Furthermore,
the amendments require an entity to disclose additional information to
enable users of financial statements to understand the effect of interest rate
benchmark reform on an entity's financial instruments and risk management
strategy. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after | January 2021 and shall be applied retrospectively, but entities are

not required to restate the comparative information.

F 3R 2020
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs (Contq)

Amendments to IAS | clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as
current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity's right
to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with
specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability
at the end of the reporting period if it complies with those conditions at
that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that
the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The
amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of
a liability. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after | January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to |AS |6 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022 and shall be applied
retrospectively only to items of property, plant and equipment made
available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented
in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have

any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs (Contq)

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether
a contract is onerous under |IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract
comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate
directly to a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g, an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and supervision
costs). General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract
and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after | January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for
which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening equity at
the date of initial application without restating the comparative information.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the

Group's financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs (Contd) 2.3 C 1B 18 R A4 R B R B

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to IFRS |,
IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of
the amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group are as

follows:

. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity includes
when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial
liability are substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received
by either the borrower or lender on the other's behalf. An entity
applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or
exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period
in which the entity first applies the amendment. The amendment
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendment is not expected to

have a significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

. IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative Example |3
accompanying IFRS [6. This removes potential confusion regarding

the treatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS 16.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic

best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that

would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the

use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Fair value measurement (Contad)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level | — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, contract assets,
deferred tax assets, financial assets, and non-current assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset

belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the

function of the impaired asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Contd)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for

that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person's family and

that person

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of the key management personnel of the Group

or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 EREBORBIE @)
POLICIES (Contd)
Related parties (Contd) B (E)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies: b) BEZRERBENE TINUEM
—IRRMF
(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same group; () ZERBEAEEEBR-—
SEKERA
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or iy —EBAS—EB(HS
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity); —EBOERA - HE
NGBS PNCIDL:Y
BENRRAERE
(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third (il ZEBEREELSR—
party; F=THEERE
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other vy " ERBRE=1EEN
entity is an associate of the third entity; BELE ME—ESR
RRE =T ERNEE
2 A]
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit v) ZEBA/AEEINEXR
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the SEEEENERBHME
Group; B N 55 5% 37 H B B A2 A
B
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (i) ZEBXQEMMALT
identified in (a); PEHIS A RIES
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the (i) R@O)EBEMEALTHE
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the BEEATXENEZLE
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and B(HZERBEQARE
EEEABMNEP—F
K8 K&
(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, (i) MASEEXAEEFE
provides key management personnel services to the Group or NARHFEEEAE
to the parent of the Group. RN ERBNEFREE

BEREMK B RA]

F 3R 2020 BRI EEER D A itk
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its

working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as

individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as

follows:

Machinery 9.5%
Electronic equipment and others 19% to 31.67%
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2020
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Contq)
An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at
cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite

useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is capitalised
and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility
of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale,
its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources to
complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product development expenditure which does

not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXETBEBE#®)
POLICIES (Contd)
Leases HE

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use

assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(@)  Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated

useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings 5to 10 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of

the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,

depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2020

—ECEF+ZRA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)

Leases (Contd)

Group as a lessee (Contd)

®)

F 3R 2020

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or

condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses
the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g, a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in

assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently

measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS |5 in accordance with the policies set out for

“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI")
on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,

irrespective of the business model.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Investments and other financial assets (Contd)

Initial recognition and measurement (Contd)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it
manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business
model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial
assets which are not held within the aforementioned business models are

classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established

by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their

classification as follows:
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXETBEBE#®)

POLICIES (Contd)

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e,, removed

from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the

asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group

has retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Derecognition of financial assets (Contd)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group

could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the

contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a |2-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on
a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-

looking information.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (Contd)

General approach (Contd)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 30 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group

may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
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external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any

credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
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Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets

which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

BERRSID
Stage | — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased BEXI— 2mTAEMEERRS
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss )46 HEE R 18 N 4 FR 2E 1R
allowance is measured at an amount equal to |2-month ECLs m- HEBEREEER
1218 A FEHIEEEIEN
TRETE
Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased BE2— 2mTAMEERRS
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit- %ﬂﬁﬁﬁ@;m{ﬁ%@%{iﬁbﬂ (e
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is WIHEERENEHT
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(but that are not purchased or credit-impaired) and for which
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (Contd)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the

debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as payables.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, other payables and

accruals and lease liabilities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in

the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the

liabilities simuttaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on the weighted average basis. Net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to

completion and disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months when acquired
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's

cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including time
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to

use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a

reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the provision of property
engineering services for general repairs of defects occurring during
the warranty period of two years. Provisions for these assurance-type
warranties granted by the Group are recognised based on sales volume
and estimation of the level of repairs, discounted to their present values as

appropriate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,

either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and

practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,

except:

(i)  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
consolidated and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

(i) in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the

temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Income tax (Contd)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses can be utilised, except:

(i)  when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business consolidated and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and

(i) in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be

available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

F 3R 2020

2.4 EREFHBERME®)

Fr&w (&)
EETRIRE ETISART A A FRE i
ZH - BRERPAHBEELEAR
RRBEBETAER - BLERIEE
EEAAELBRERTEN - BE
WA F AR E R Z AR EE
REYABIRE R K ARE B HIERE R
BIERT - 77 T LARER - HETFIE
SLEROM -

() BETINRERERELER
HEERNVIXER B IE
XBEHNRITHEELE
& - BRZIBERXZHETRTE
e RERTERZ &

iy FLERKHBARMNEESEN
AR EREEmN S - BT
HEEESNEREREA 14
A2 A T8 R AR R R RFE
JE R A Al YRR S 52 B B
EZERIERT © TR -

AEFER TR A 2 A0 AR (B & S 1
Rigat - YHORETBRIEHESE -
S e FE SR K| LA B R 2 BR Sk BE
BELERAEERR o REDRILEH
REENSREHREMNNG - XL
RBFIBLH & HIE R4 M Al B &
Wk By RERBAEER T
IABERR ©

EEHBREERABERBARERR
BESRIBEBENRENOR R
B UNEREHRCEMKCE
BREITRR R (RBDR) REE

BRI EEER D A

125




126

B 75 R 3R Y =
31 December 2020
—E-EF+ZRA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Income tax (Contd)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be

settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that

the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange

for those goods or services.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the goods or services provided in the ordinary course of the

Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of taxes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)

Revenue recognition (Contd)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Contd)

@)

®)

©

F 3R 2020

Property management and value-added services

For property management services, the Group bills a fixed amount
for services provided on a semi-annually basis and revenue is
recognised over the service period on a straight-line basis because
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits

provided by the Group.

For value-added services, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the related value-added services are rendered. Payment of the
transaction is due immediately when the value-added services are

rendered to the customer.

Property engineering services

Revenue from the provision of property engineering services is
recognised over time, using an input method to measure progress
towards complete satisfaction of the service, because the Group's
performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date. The input method recognises
revenue based on the proportion of the actual costs incurred
relative to the estimated total costs for satisfaction of the property

engineering services.

Ancillary food supply services
Revenue from ancillary food supply services is recognised at a point
in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer,

generally on the acceptance of the goods by the customer.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Revenue recognition (Contd)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Contd)

(d)  Club house services, including catering and ancillary services

Revenue from club house services, including catering and ancillary
services is recognised at a point in time when food, beverages
and others services are delivered to or rendered to the customer,

generally on the acceptance of the services by the customer.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter

period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or
services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by transferring
goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the accounting policies for

impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment
is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers
the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the

related goods or services to the customer).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)
Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. The subsidiaries operating in Mainland
China are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central

pension scheme.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the

shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company's articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised

immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

Theses financial statements are presented in RMB. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Foreign currencies (Contd)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the

advance consideration.

The functional currencies of each entity in the Group may be the currencies
other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit
or loss are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for

the year.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Foreign currencies (Contd)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into

Renminbi at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the

financial statements:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Contd)

Judgements (Contd)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group applied the following judgements that significantly affect the
determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with

customers:

Determining the timing of satisfaction of property engineering services

The Group concluded that revenue for property engineering services is
to be recognised over time because the Group's performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an

enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

Withholding tax arising from the distribution of dividends

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for withholding corporate income
taxes relating to the unremitted earnings of the Group's subsidiaries
established in Mainland China that are subject to withholding taxes.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax liabilities, based upon the likely distribution level of such
earnings from these subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. The amount
of deferred tax liabilities arising from the withholding tax associated with
the investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for the year ended 3|
December 2020 was RMB590,000 (31 December 2019: Nil). Further

details are contained in note 14 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Contd)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Measurement of progress toward complete satisfaction of
property engineering services

The Group uses input method to measure the progress toward satisfaction
of the performance obligations, and specifically, the proportion of actual
costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs. The Group determined
that the input method is the best method in measuring the progress of
the property engineering services because there is a direct relationship
between the Group's effort (i.e., costs incurred) and the transfer of goods
and services to the customer. The Group recognises revenue on the basis
of the costs expended relative to the total expected costs to complete
the services. Actual costs incurred include direct and indirect costs in the
process of transferring goods and services from the Group to customers.
The Group believes that contract price is based on costs. Therefore, the
proportion of actual costs incurred relative to the total expected costs can
reflect the progress toward satisfaction of property engineering service.
Since the duration of performance obligation is relatively long and it may
fall in two accounting periods, the Group will review contract, revise

budget and adjust revenue accordingly as the contract carries forward.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Contd)

Estimation uncertainty (Contd)

Provisions

Significant management estimates are involved in the determination of the
cost of assurance-type warranty to be incurred during the warranty period.
Accordingly, management exercises considerable judgment in determining
whether there is a present obligation as a result of a past event at the
reporting date, whether it is more likely than not that such warranty
services will result an outflow of resources and whether the amount of
the obligation can be reliably estimated with reference to the size of the
project, relevant correspondences and contracts with customers. The
management estimates the cost for warranty services with regard to the

Group's experience in addressing such matters.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and
contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables
and contract assets. The provision rates are based on ageing for groupings
of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by

product type, customer type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are expected
to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the

forward-looking estimates are analysed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Contd)

Estimation uncertainty (Contd)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and
contract assets (Contd)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on
the Group's trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in notes |7

and 19 to the financial statements, respectively.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease,
and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have
to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group
“would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary's
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit

rating).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Contd)

Estimation uncertainty (Contd)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation
charges for its property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment. Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful

lives are less than previously estimated lives.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for
all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at the end of
each reporting period. An impairment exists when the carrying value of
an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm'’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of
the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate

the present value of those cash flows.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their services and has three reportable operating segments as

follows:

(@) Property management and value-added services

(b) Property engineering services

() Others*

& The “others” segment comprises club house services, including catering and

ancillary services and ancillary food supply services.

The revenue generated from ancillary food supply services consisted of the
sales of agricultural products to the canteens of customers. The business

was terminated in 2019.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on

reportable segment profit.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contq) 4. REDFER 2

Segment revenue pan=idl €y
2020 2019
—B-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT T ARETT
Property management and value-added services  #)3E 12 R IG(E AR 165,008 149,249
Property engineering services Y% T2 AR 45,904 34,143
Others Hitb 2,276 730
213,188 184,122
Segment results D EBELR
2020 2019
—B-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Property management and value-added services  #)3%E 12 K IG(E RS 60,875 45,753
Property engineering services i E MRS h 3,722 701
Others Htt (157) an
Segment results DEELE 64,440 46,343
Reconciliation: B -
Unallocated income FOBUA 6,620 597
Unallocated expenses RO (10,340) (36)
Profit before tax BR A& 7 60,720 46,904
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PR ER R MR

31 December 2020

—ECEF+ZRA=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Conta)

4.

gEIWER (B

Segment assets PHEE
2020 2019
—g-®F -T-N%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Property management and value-added services ~ #)3£E 12 R IG(E AR 355,619 177,099
Property engineering services Y% T2 AR 64,579 36,027
Others Ht 184 2,042
Segment assets DEEE 420,382 215,168
Recondiliation: 7k
Unallocated assets ROBLEE 9,872 833
Total assets BERE 430,254 216,001
Segment liabilities
2019
—R_®F —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETTT
Property management and value-added services )3 %E 182 M IB(BE AR 91,141 86,399
Property engineering services Y TIZRRTS 20,473 13,680
Others Hith 549 1,789
Segment liabilities NEEE 112,163 101,868
Reconciliation: B -
Unallocated liabilities roBLBE 1,747 133
Total liabilities BiE4RER 113,910 102,001
EEYBREEEERAR
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contq) 4. REDFER 2

Other segment information Hib o #HE R
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE—E-_FFf-FA=+—HL
FE
Property
management
and Property
value-added engineering
services services Others Total
NMEEER UES
RERE TRER% Htty st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBT R ARBT R ARBT R
Additions to property, plant and REWE  BER
equipment B 512 74 - 586
Additions to other intangible asset AEHMBEEE 377 - - 371
Depreciation of property, M - BE KRR
plant and equipment e 688 17 - 705
Amortisation of other intangible asset bR & = 55 75 - - 75
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREBERE 274 - 95 369
Impairment losses on trade BIHRBTIERAER
receivables and contract assets BERERSR 8 206 - 214
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE—F-NFF+ZA=1+—HL
FE
Property
management Property
and value-added engineering
services services Others Total
WEEER UES
$E(E PR T2k Hfty st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETE  ARETT  ARETR
Additions to property, plant and REWE  BER
equipment B 501 52 = 553
Depreciation of property, M - BB KR
plant and equipment e 646 [4 - 660
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREAENE 138 8l 109 328
(Reversal of impairment)/ BOHRKFEREHK
impairment losses on trade BE CAERE),/
receivables and contract assets REEE (71) 76 6 [
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Conta)

Geographical information
Since the Group has operates in Mainland China only, no further operating

geographical information analysis is presented.

Information about major customers

Revenue of approximately RMB27,597,000 (2019: RMB31,676,000) and
RMB31,021,000 (2019: RMB26,108,000) were derived from sales of
services to Zensun Enterprises Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Zensun
Enterprises Group™) and Ever Diamond Global Company Limited and its

subsidiaries (the “Ever Diamond Group"), respectively.

Except for those mentioned above, there was no single customer from
which the revenue amounted to 10% or more of the Groups total revenue

at the end of the reporting period.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS
AND LOSSES

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

4.

weEEER 2

tEER

AR AEBEEHRE A LE - i
b 4 2 51— S B AR DT o

EBEXEEFHNESR
HAR¥27597,000C(ZFE—Ah
F: AR¥E31,676,00070) kAR
31,021,000 (ZE—hE : ARK
26,108,0007T) MMz © A RIZRBER
MEBEXERARRENB AR
([EAEHEER]) A RKERKE
RARIKEKBAR ([KEEE])
HE RS -

BT IR RN REFREHR
MEREE —XFPHRShAER
WS 4858 | 0% LA | o

s - HWA - Efbiiss

2019
—T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Type of services ARFSEREY
Property management and value-added services  #)3£%E 12 K IR(E RS 165,008 149,249
Property engineering services Y T2 RS 45,904 34,143
Others HAl, 2,276 730
213,188 184,122

EEYBREEEERAR
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS
AND LOSSES (Conta)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Wi - HMlA - Httlas

KREE #)

2020 2019
- —ET-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT R ARETT
Timing of revenue recognition g i=an
At a point in time RFANGF T2
Value-added services A IRTE 7,071 8,135
Others Hity 2,276 730
Over time R—EREFE
Property management MEEE 157,937 141,114
Property engineering services Y TZARTE 45,904 34,143
213,188 184,122

The following table shows the revenue recognised in relation to contract

liabilities carried forward from the end of the prior year:

TR E—FEREENGHNEE

PR e

2020 2019
—B_®F —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTFT

Type of services ARESFREY
Property engineering services W% TIZARTS 747 =
Property management and value-added services )3 E 182 M IB(BE AR 28,655 28,067
29,402 28,067
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS
AND LOSSES (Conta)

Performance obligations
Information about the Group's performance obligations is summarised

below:

Property management

The performance obligation is satisfied over time and payments are
generally paid in advance. For property management services, the Group
recognises revenue in the amount that equals to the right to invoice
which corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the Group's
performance to date. The Group has elected the practical expedient
for not to disclose the remaining performance obligations for property
management. The majority of the property management service contracts

do not have a fixed term.

Value-added services

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time and payments are
generally due when the services are rendered. For value-added services,
they are rendered in a short period of time and there is no unsatisfied

performance obligation at the end of each reporting period.

Property engineering services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are rendered
and payment is generally due within 30 days from the date of billing. A
certain percentage of payment is retained by customers until the end of
the retention period as the Group's entitlement to the final payment is
conditional on the satisfaction of the service quality by the customers over

a certain period as stipulated in the contracts.
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS
AND LOSSES (Conta)

Performance obligations (Contd)

Property engineering services (Contd)

The transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance obligations
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) of property engineering services as at

the end of each reporting period are as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Wz - HAWA - Efbliia
RER#)

BB @)

WETERE (F

REREHR  HREVETER
BHTROEE RERRHH K
ER) R SERIT ;

2020 2019

—B-EF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETT
Within | year —FA 52,963 38,871
| to 2 years —EMF 19,909 4919
2 to 3 years ME=F 3,890 =
76,762 43,790

Ancillary food supply services IR R

The performance obligation is satisfied upon acceptance of the goods by
the customer and payment is generally due within 30 days from delivery,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally required.
There is no unsatisfied performance obligation for ancillary food supply

services at the end of each reporting period.

Club house services, including catering and ancillary services

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when food,
beverages and other services are delivered to or rendered to the customer
and payment is generally due within 30 days from delivery.There is no
unsatisfied performance obligation for club house services, including

catering and ancillary services at the end of each reporting period.
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS 5. Wram - WA - s
AND LOSSES (Contd) KEiE @)
An analysis of other income, other gains and losses is as follows: HA A ~ H b ias R EHE T8
B
2020 2019
—g-¥F —T-N%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETTT
Government grants* IR B 91l 827
Interest income FEUA 8,948 557
Foreign exchange differences, net ME N R HER (424) 597
9,435 1,981
2 Government grants related to income that are received or receivable as y Eﬁﬁ%@ﬂﬁﬁ%{?ﬁEEi%ﬁiﬁ:@?
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of BRI ENREBARRABAAR
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs. E"j'%ﬁ?@%;%%ﬁ%ﬂﬂ By 81 755
These government grants are recognised in profit or loss in the period in S 1R 1M B IS I ) IR A A
which they become receivable. % 5 AU 178 7 M A oA 1 e R

BN ER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. PBRBLATEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AEBMBRBANEF SR (5T
MNIATRIBESH :
2020 2019
— BT —F-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBFTT
Cost of services provided PR ARTE AR AR 126,449 104,691
Cost of ancillary food supplied PRI R A A - 779
Depreciation of property, plant and M - WEMRERETE
equipment (note |3) (MF3E13) 705 660
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note |5) EREEERE (M&I15) 369 328
Amortisation of other intangible asset Hh ST & FE# i 75 =
Research and development expenses HEEEA 1,881 2,590
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B5 R 37 B 1,300 900
Employee benefit expense EERAFX
(including directors’ remuneration) (BEESHFM)
Wages and salaries ITERF® 28,009 21,568
Pension scheme contributions RRE IR 246 1,942
Foreign exchange differences, net ME N R EE 424 (597)
Impairment losses on trade receivables B HRWFIEREREE
and contract assets IEEE 214 I
Listing expenses il 5 7,953 12,373
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BARERA

2020
—g-%F

— g

RMB’000
AR®T T

Interest on lease liabilities (note |5)

174

2019
—T-NEF
RMB'000
AREFT

84

146
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EENRESITHRAEHMN
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed BEETHRA - BAECRBUEH)D) F
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong 383(1)(a) ~ (b) * (o) & (HiEKkLATA]
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of (BBESMEER) RO F224
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: BENESERERTEABRAFEHN
FMaT :
2020 2019
—E-EHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTTT
Fees ik = =
Other emoluments: Hithfi <
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMEEDAR 668 262
Pension scheme contributions RS FHEIMERK 1 I5
669 277
(a) Independent non-executive directors () BYAFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the RERZNTEILIERITES
year were as follows: RS :
2020 2019
g St 25 —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFT
Mr. Feng Zhidong BEREE 100 -
Mr. Zhou Sheng BBt 4 100 -
Mr. Xu Chun RELE 100 -

300 =
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERRSTBRASHMH

REMUNERATION (Contd) (&)

(a) Independent non-executive directors (Contd) (@) BYEHITEE(Z)
Mr. Feng Zhidong and Mr. Zhou Sheng were appointed as the BERFEEREBRER_F
directors of the Company on 12 August 2019 and were re- —NENATZBEZEARR
designated as independent non-executive directors of the Company RNAIEE  RZT-NFNA
on |7 September 2019. Mr. Xu Chun was appointed as a director THBERAERERRIEILIEH
of the Company on 9 September 2019 and was re-designated as TEE - RELER=-T—N
an independent non-executive director of the Company on |7 FNRNBEZERKARE
September 2019. They are primarily responsible for supervising B -RIZE-NFNAATER
and providing independent judgement to the board of directors. AERARRBBIIERITE
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non- E-RETZATEEESE
executive directors during the year (2019: Nil). WMEFSREBLHE - F

AR B IFRITESRN
HiBE (ZF—NF: T) -

(b) Executive director and non-executive directors (b) BITEERFHITES
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind contributions Total
BRIz FHEIHR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARY¥T T AR¥T T
Year ended 3| December 2020 HBE-_T-FTF
T=HA=—E
IEFE
Executive director: HITESE -
Mr. Zhu Jie* KRG AE* 368 | 369
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERESITHAEHMH
REMUNERATION (Conta) (&)
(b) Executive director and non-executive directors (b) BITESRFHUITES
(Cont'd) (%)
Salaries,
allowances and Pension
benefits scheme
in kind contributions Total
Fe o 2UK RK®
BYH=E FTEIf #Et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT ARBTFT
Year ended 3| December 2019 HE2-_E—hF
el
IFFE
Executive director: WITES
Mr. Zhu Jie* SR ANREE 262 15 277
* Mr. Zhu Jie was appointed as a director of the Company on |2 X RKREERZZ—NENA+Z

F 3R 2020

August 2019 and was re-designated as an executive director of the
Company on |7 September 2019. He also served as chief executive
officer in Xingye IOT Management. His remuneration disclosed above
included the remuneration for the services rendered by him as the
chief executive.

Ms. Zhang Huigi, Mr. Wang Jinhu and Mr. Liu Zhengiang were
appointed as directors of the Company on 12 August 2019 and
were re-designated as non-executive directors of the Company on
|'7 September 2019. There were no emoluments payable to the

non-executive directors during the year (2019: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year (2019: Nil).

REZERARRESR  R=FT
—NFENATLRAERETAF
WITEE - RS EEEX Y
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the years included one director
(2019: one), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above.
Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2019: four)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of

the Company are as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

hEBREFMES

BEN RARBFHEED G
E—EZEE(ZF-NF: %)
HHFMFBERN EXMEs o F
R BMBTIOE(ZF—AF
P02 )FEARREERREITHAS
BB B R S BRI T -

2020
—g-%F

— i he—

2019

RMB’000
ARET T

RMB'000
ARETIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ERMEDA G 1,331 | 142
Pension scheme contributions RIREET R 5 67
1,336 [,209

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid

employees whose remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

FMN FATEENIEES RIER
=T A B &= BiEEf AR
T

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 =2 1,000,000 7T

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the five highest paid individuals (including directors and
employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2020
—E-THE+-A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FRBBIRAS

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising
in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the Group are

domiciled and operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and BVI, the

Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and BVI.

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC and the respective
regulations, except for Xingye Consulting in which enjoyed a preferential
enterprise tax rate of 5% during the reporting period, the subsidiaries
which operate in Mainland China are subject to enterprise income tax at a

rate of 25% on the taxable income.

ANEBAR AR B B A R
MR E RIS DA R T E L
X BRER 0 ) 12 B RS A E AR 1S
R o

RERSHEREBRZHSRA
MOER - AEBBERFEEE N
RE R ESHMEAFFN o

REB(CPEARAXMBEEEMEH
R) RERBRE - REXHZAR
BERZEBELEMERBER%
S - R B AR = R B R R A
TRIERBIRA 5% M ZEFTISH ©

2020 2019

—g-®F -T-h%5

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETTT

Current BNHA 16,527 12,314
Deferred (note 14) IRAE (FisE14) 690 (583)

Total tax charge for the year FANHIAFR X 25 17,217 ['1,731
F 3} 2020 EEYBREEEERAR
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B 75 R 3R Y =
31 December 2020
“ECTFE+-A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd) 10. FRiS®ipA>< (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the BRERZHMBRARIFERDEER
statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the majority of its subsidiaries are HYEE TR R ET E RBR T AR F 3 A
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation M TE R >z B IR 2 W%*R%E*%W*RIE
of the applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, is A RS RERHE (BEEMR
as follows: R)EBETRAEERAOT ¢
2020 2019
—ECRF —T-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Profit before tax BRI RT &= A 60,720 46,904
Tax at the statutory rate of 25% FR259% A TE B 5T 15,180 11,726
Different/preferential tax rates applicable to ERVEERMBAREAN
subsidiaries in respective jurisdiction e,/ BEBE 570 (19)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 1o 24
Income not subject to tax AR (169) =
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on TQZIK%.E’UEF‘EW%R
the distributable profits of the Group's DikEFETE B
PRC subsidiaries |0% R & 1,414 -
Effect on opening deferred tax of decrease THRBERHFNRELERIE L
in rates 2 22 =
Tax losses not recognised RIERBIBEE 90 -
Total tax expense for the year FATIER < 5 17,217 1,731
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B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2020
—ECEF+ZRA=+—H

I1. DIVIDENDS

1. RE

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARETT

Interim declared and paid FHIE K MR — B E @A
— RMB2.06 cents per ordinary share AREE206 9 8,240 -
Final declared and paid RNEAE IR SRS - 42,625
8,240 42,625

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend in respect
of the year ended 3| December 2020.

Interim dividend of RMB2.06 cents per share, amounting to approximately
RMB8,240,000 was declared during the year and paid on 9 October 2020.

The distribution amounts set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity of RMB42,625,000 for the year ended 3| December 2019
represented the dividends declared and paid by Xingye IOT Management.

to its then shareholders before reorganisation.

F 3R 2020

EZeTEBNEBE_T_FTF
TZA=T—BLEFEIRNREK
5

o
/5N

ﬁWE/)ﬁ‘:F'HﬂHﬁ FIRARK2.06
J %’U}\Eﬁg8 240, 00071: 172 N

HE_ZT-NF+-HA=+—HL
FE  GeERRBHRMEZOIK
S EI A ANRBE426250007T  JHEIE

BHERRNESHAINNERRES
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BRI EEER D A

153




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 3R Y =
31 December 2020
“ECTFE+-A=+—H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12. BRAREERERISEAE

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 381,369,863
(2019: 299,992,466) in issue during the year ended 31 December 2020, as
adjusted for the assumption that 299,990,000 new shares issued pursuant
to the Capitalisation Issue (as defined in note 25) had been issued on |
January 2019, which is made to be consistent with the basis of presentation

of financial information for the year ended 3| December 2020.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the
year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on:

EERER

ERERZFSEIIRBEE AR
%H%E%ﬁAfEEW@ﬂﬁ

CEBEZTTFF+ZA=1+—
Etifﬂ?ﬂ%@%%%%$ﬁ
H5381,369,863 K (ZF— N5 ¢
299992,4661%)  BHEN =T — 1
F-A—BARBEALET(ER
S EE25) M 817 #9299,990,000 A%
RARE  BEE_T_TF+_F4
=+ —HILEFENMBERZIE
E—B o
BHEZT-_ZTFR-_FT-NF+=
A=+—HBILtFE  FrEEIES
BT BEE ST R -

SREXBFOEER :

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT

Earnings BF

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders AEERERBREALN
of the parent used in the basic earings BARIEBRERFEAA
per share calculation &G A

43,503 35173
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2020
—E-THE+-A=+—H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12. BRAREERERISEAE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE EERERN 2
PARENT (Contd)

Number of shares

R E

Shares gy
Number of issued shares on | January R—A—BAREBITROHEE 10,000 -
Issue of shares on 12 August 2019 R=ZZE—hENA+=H
BITHIRR D -
Issue of shares on 2 October 2019 RZZE-NFT+RZR%ET
MR - 9.999
Effect of Capitalisation Issue on R BT R EETE RN ET
the Listing Date (note 25) V8 (fEE25) 299,990,000 299,990,000
Initial public offering on the Listing Date R EMABETERAARH
(note 25) 8 (M4sE25) 100,000,000 1

Weighted average number of ordinary shares AEERERBFREA

in issue during the year used in the basic B FAEITE B
eamings per share calculation w98 381,369,863 299,992,466

F 3R 2020 BRI EEER D A 55
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B 75 R 3R Y =
31 December 2020
“ECTFE+-A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥1% - BERRE
Electronic
equipment
Machinery and others Total
W BrRERAEM At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR ARMT T
31 December 2020 —E-2HF
T=H=+-H
At | January 2020 R_TB_TF
=A== ¢
Cost DN 134 3,415 3,549
Accumulated depreciation RETinE 41) (1,317) (1,358)
Net carrying amount FREHE 93 2,098 2,191
At | January 2020, net of RZZE_FF—H
accumulated depreciation —B - REFHTE 93 2,098 2,191
Additions NE 43 543 586
Depreciation provided during the year ~ FRITE (14) (691) (705)
At 31 December 2020, net of R-_Z_FF
accumulated depreciation TZH=ET—F -
R RETITE 122 1,950 2,072
At 31 December 2020: R_ZF_FF
B e =
Cost DN 177 3,958 4,135
Accumulated depreciation REiTE (55) (2,008) (2,063)
Net carrying amount AREDFE 122 1,950 2,072
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B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2020
—E-THE+-A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd) 13. Y% - BMERRZE®)
Electronic
equipment
Machinery and others Total
Her BErRENEAM #ET
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT AR¥ETTT AREBTIT
31 December 2019 —®-hEF+=RA
=908
At | January 2019: R-_E—hF
il =1
Cost B AR 134 2,862 2,996
Accumulated depreciation RETinE (28) (670) (698)
Net carrying amount FREHE 106 2,192 2,298
At | January 2019, net of RZZE—-NF—A
accumulated depreciation —B - MKRRFHE 106 2,192 2,298
Additions NE = 553 553
Depreciation provided during the year ~ FRITE R (13) (647) (660)
At 31 December 2019, net of R-F—NF
accumulated depreciation TZHET—F -
HMERRETTE 93 2,098 2,191
At 31 December 2019: RZZB—NF
A=
Cost PR 134 3415 3,549
Accumulated depreciation RETITE 1) (1,317) (1,358)
Net carrying amount AREDFE 93 2,098 2,191
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B 75 R 3R Y =
31 December 2020
“ECTFE+-A=+—H

14. DEFERRED TAX 14. ELEHIA
The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are as follows: BT IREENFAEBNT ¢
Deferred tax assets BLEHEEE

Impairment Tax

losses losses Accruals Total
REEE REEE FEstER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR ARETT AR®TR

At | January 2019 RZZE—NF—HA—H
Deferred tax credited to the FARBRERTA
statement of profit or loss during HIRIERIA (st 10)
the year (note 10) 2 5 576 583

Deferred tax assets as at 31 December R-ZE—n&E+=A

2019 and | January 2020 =+—-BRZZTF
—A—BWEERRRE 85 5 576 666
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to FARBREERIA
the statement of profit or loss during (kR ) MR BIR
the year (note 10) (fEE10) 168 (5) (263) (100)
Deferred tax assets as at RZZZTF+=
31 December 2020 =+ BMREHEEE 253 - 313 566
Deferred tax liability EiEHEEE
Withholding
taxes
BB
RMB’000
ARMT T
At | January 2020 R-ZE-FTF—H—H -
Deferred tax charged to the statement of FARBRENRAELESIE
profit or loss during the year (note 10) (M¥zE10) 590
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-TF+-A=+—HH
EETHIA R ERRR 590
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B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2020
—ECEF+ZRA=+—H

14. DEFERRED TAX (Contad)

Deferred tax liability (Conta)
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of RMB542,000 (2019: nil)
that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of

the companies in which the losses arose.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses
as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available

against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 0% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from | January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2017. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland

China in respect of eamings generated from | January 2008.

By the end of 31 December 2019, no deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
eamings that are subject to withholding taxes of a subsidiary of the Group
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, it is not probable that this subsidiary will distribute earnings
arising from | January 2008 to 3| December 2019 in the foreseeable

future.

F 3R 2020
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B 75 R 3R Y =
31 December 2020
—E-EF+-A=+—H

14. DEFERRED TAX (Contad)

Deferred tax liability (Conta)

The Board distributed certain dividends to overseas holding companies
from the distributable profit earned by Xingye IOT Management in
Mainland China from | January 2020 to 31 December 2020. Therefore,
the Group is liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by Xingye
IOT Management established in Mainland China in respect of earnings from
| January 2020 to 31 December 2020 and deferred tax liability amounting
to RMB590,000 was recognized regarding to withholding taxes as at 31
December 2020.

The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with the
investment in the subsidiary in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately RMB58,540,000
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB28,938,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of

dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2020
—E-THE+-A=+—H

I5. LEASES 15. HE
The Group as a lessee REBEEREBEA
The Group has lease contracts of buildings used in its operations. Leases REEBRBLERERANRZEDD
of buildings have lease terms between 5 and 10 years. Generally, the HESK -BFHENHEEASE
Group s restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside 0% « =S * ANEBEHR IR
the Group, and there is no lease contract that include extension and AEBZIEEREHEEEE -
termination options and variable lease payment. I B B AR R AR I R A K

TRERMNROARAL -

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) RAEELE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the AT E IR KRB RF A A
movements during the year are as follows: HEELNNERE
Buildings
g¥
2020 2019
i —FT—NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTTT
As at | January W=F=E 2,676 1,259
Additions NE 1,894 | 745
Depreciation charge TeEEH (369) (328)
As at 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 4,201 2,676
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B 75 R 3R Y =
31 December 2020
“ECTFE+-A=+—H

I5. LEASES (Contd) 15. HE #®)
The Group as a lessee (Contd) KEBEREAMEA ()
(b) Lease liabilities (b)) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during AT &SI FAREE & ERE
the year are as follows: BEREE :
Buildings
BF
2020 2019
—B-EF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT T ARETT
Carrying amount at | January R—A—BHREFE 4,054 2,225
New leases WiHEE 1,894 [,745
Accretion of interest recognised FAERNFEE R
during the year 174 84
Amount settled through BRERERREE
debt transfer agreement (note 30(b)) B2 58 (FIE30(0)) (1,026) -
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HAKREFE 5,096 4,054
Analysed into: DR -
Current portion mEER S 1,104 1,859
Non-current portion IERENE 3,992 2,195
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 30 to the HE B BN DT # BRI %R

financial statements.

During the year, the Group entered into lease contracts of buildings
with a related party amounting to RMB1,894,000. Included in lease
liabilities are amounts due to a related party after the debt transfer
(note 30(b)) of RMB4,803,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB3,760,000).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2020
—E-THE+-A=+—H

I5. LEASES (Contd) 15. HE ®)
The Group as a lessee (Contd) KEBEREAMEA ()
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to () BHEERKEZERHELEN
leases are as follows: e

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBFTT
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBENMERX 174 84
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets ~ {FFEEEMNTEE A 369 328
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIBHERR AR 543 412
16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. Htt B EE

Patents

and licences

BRI KRR
RMB’000
AR®T T
31 December 2020 —E-FHF+-A=+-—H
Cost at | January 2020, net of RZZE_TF—-H—HAINRK -
accumulated amortisation kR 2T -
Additions NE 377
Amortisation provided during the year FNBE R (75)
At 31 December 2020 R-FB_FF+_A=+—H 302
At 31 December 2020: R_ZF_FF+_H=1—8:
Cost (D% 377
Accumulated amortisation Rt (75)
Net carrying amount BREFE 302
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31 December 2020
—E-EF+ZRA=+—H

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. EZERFIE

2020 2019
—ECBF —T—hnEF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETIT

Trade receivables B 5 W F0R 38,845 18,466
Impairment VERIE] (451) (229)
38,394 18,237

The Group's trading terms for rendering property management and
value-added services with its customers are mainly payment in advance.
The trading terms for property engineering services, club house services,
including catering and ancillary services and ancillary food supply services
are mainly on credit and the credit period is generally within 30 days. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. In view of the fact that the Group's trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade

receivables are non-interest-bearing.

Included in trade receivables are amounts due from related parties of
RMB34,426,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB14,088,000).

The carrying amount of trade receivables approximates to their fair value.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2020
—ECEF+ZRA=+—H

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Contd)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of each reporting

period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

17. EZEWE

RIH (%)

RERERAR - BHRBGIRER
HZE AR RHBRBRERENRE D

HranT
2020 2019
—E_EF — N
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT
Within | year | £ 37,452 18,237
| to 2 years | ZE24F 942 -
38,394 18,237

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables

are as follows:

B oW RREE BRI

T

2020 2019

g St 25 —NE

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT R ARETT

At beginning of year REA) 229 248
Impairment losses, net BEERFEE 222 (19)
At end of year RER 451 229

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on ageing for groupings of various customer segments with
similar loss patterns (i.e., by product type, customer type and rating). The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future

economic conditions.
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B 75 R 3R Y =
31 December 2020
“ECTFE+-A=+—H

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Contd) 17. BEZBEERE @)
Throughout the year, the management kept monitoring the recoverability REEFE EBE-BHEZEESH
of trade receivables, since the actual loss rate for trade receivables and the JEYRIER FIE 1 - BRFAE
adjustments for forward-looking factors did not have significant changes S ERW AN BRR B8 X R AT 1%
during the year, the management kept the same expected credit loss rate AENABETEERAE L EEE
during the year. If there is an indicator for a significant change in credit risk, RERNRFEROBEREEERE
the management would reassess and revise the expected credit loss rates X MAENRKAGERRELS
where appropriate during such year ended. REME - BIEE AN A BB R

EFRHEY BRI REMEEREEX -

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the BERASERARBEERTENE
Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: SR RIEME B R kR O & RS
PR
As at 31 December 2020 R=2="F+=HA=+—~H
Ageing
HRiie
Within | year | to 2 years 2 to 3 years
IR [EYES 21E3F
Expected credit loss rate BHEERHEX 2% 5% 10% 2.29%
Gross carrying amount due from BUREBEUE=71 3,999 420 - 4,419
independent third parties (RMB'000) FREE(ARETT)
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) RHEEER 80 21 - 101
(AREFT)
Expected credit loss rate BHEEEEX 1% 2% 4% 1.02%
Gross carrying amount due from JE MR FRE 7 AR BR 1A 33,872 554 - 34,426
related parties (RMB'000) (ARBFT)
Expected credit losses (RMB000) BHEEER 339 I - 350
(ARBTT)
Total expected credit losses BHEEEBAE 419 32 - 451
(RMB000) (AREFT)
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B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2020
—E-THE+-A=+—H

7. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont) 17. B BWFRE @)
As at 31 December 2019 R=-B—hF+=-A=+—H
Ageing
Within | year | to 2 years 210 3 years
IR | Z2F 1535
Expected credit loss rate RHEEEEX 2% 5% 10% 2%
Gross carrying amount due from BB E=71
independent third parties (RMB000)  BREIE (ARET ) 4378 = = 4378
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEEER
(ARBTT) 88 - - 88
Expected credit loss rate BHEEEEX 1% 2% 4% 1%
Gross carrying amount due from FE W BB 7 d AR B
related parties (RMB000) (AREFT) 14,088 - - 14,088
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) EHEERE
(ARBTL) 141 - - 141
Total expected credit losses EHEEERER
(RMB'000) (AE®FT) 229 - - 229
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18. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 18. TR - HtEWRIER
OTHER ASSETS HibEE

2020 2019

- —T-NF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETT

Prepayments TafTRIE 1,185 1,455

Capitalised listing expenses BAMb EmRX - 4,112

Deposits e 658 399

Other receivables H b e W FOR 1,242 517

Value-added tax recoverable Al Ug B2 {E R 1,826 1,189

4911 7,672

The carrying amounts of financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets approximate to their fair values. None of the
above assets is either past due or impaired. As at the end of each reporting
period, deposits and other receivables were classified within stage | and
no impairment was provided for. The financial assets included in the above
balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default.
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19. CONTRACT ASSETS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR ER R MR

31 December 2020

—ECEF+ZRA=+—H

19. BHEE

2020
—g-%F

e

RMB’000
ARET T

2019
—T—NEF
RMB'000
ARETT

REME TR ATE £

Contract assets arising from provision of

property engineering services BREE 10,749 11,527
Impairment BB (107) (1'15)
10,642 1,412

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from property
engineering services as the receipt of consideration is conditional on certain
milestones or successful completion of construction. Upon the milestones
or completion of construction and acceptance by the customer, the
amounts recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables.
The Group's trading terms and credit policy with customers are disclosed

in note |7 to the financial statements.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets as at 3|

December is as follows:

BREEVT Y E TIZIRFE MR

MR s ETTRERR - LS WE(E T
LA T BAZRE S A T SEAK i T/ Al
RIGH - REREREBRRTAR
FRaliE  BRREHNEENTR
SENMDBREBHBBFR - K%
BEZFNE S G NERBRRKTD
WENR BTSRRI 7 o

R+ZA=+—BlEHEFTELH
BEMNRHRENT

2020 2019
—g-8F —T-n&F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTFT
Within one year —F RN 10,110 10,84
After one year —F1& 532 571
Total contract assets BHEERE 10,642 1,412
F$R 2020 EEYBREEBEROAE
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“ECTFE+-A=+—H

19. CONTRACT ASSETS (Conta)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract assets are

19. BHEE &)
ARBERENEEREESHNT

as follows:
2020 2019
— 7 —= ﬂE :%gij-laﬁ'g
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBTFT
At beginning of year REH) 115 85
Impairment losses, net BIEERE  FE 6)) 30
At end of year RER 107 15

Impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision
matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates for the
measurement of the expected credit losses of the contract assets are
based on those of the trade receivables as the contract assets and the
trade receivables are from the same customer bases. The provision rates
of contract assets are based on ageing of contract assets for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by product type,
customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current

conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Included in contract assets are amounts due from related parties of
RMB10,749,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB1 1,527,000).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2020
—ECEF+ZRA=+—H

19. CONTRACT ASSETS (Conta)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the

Group's contract assets using a provision matrix:

19. BHEE &)

AR AREREFENS
A& ERE SRR O &R0
B

Expected credit loss rate FEH{E B R X
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)

Expected credit losses (RMB'000)

mREE(ARETIT)
BEHEEER (ARETT)

1% 1%
10,749 [1,527
107 15

Included in carrying amounts of contract assets as stated above is retention
money of RMB532,000 as at 3| December 2020 (2019: RMB571,000).

Retention money is unsecured and interest-free and represented the
monies withheld by customers of contract works fully recoverable within 2
years (i.e., the warranty period) from the date of completion of respective
property engineering services in accordance with the terms specified in the
relevant contracts. Upon satisfactory completion of the whole project as
set out in the contract, the customers will issue a completion certificate.
Generally, two years after the issuance of the completion certificate, the
whole retention money of such project will be released to the Group. This
amount of retention money is included in contract assets until the end of
the warranty period as the Group's entitlement to this final payment is
conditional on completion of warranty period. The Group is responsible,
at its own costs, for remedial works that may arise from defective works
or materials used. The warranty period serves as an assurance that the
construction services performed comply with agreed-upon specifications
and such assurance cannot be purchased separately. The Group classifies
these contract assets as current because the Group expects to realise
them in its normal operating cycle. The retention money does not have

any significant financing component for financing benefit.

F 3R 2020

N-—ZTE_TF+_A=+—H t
MENEENEEDERERESA
R¥532,000t (—E— .5 : AR
#£571,0007T) °

REESEEARALEE  EAHOT
BEFPHMEMNFIA - Hrl R/
METIRRB R 2 AEMRESE (A
RIEH) RIRIR BRI A HIRT AR 5K
BEWRE - REKFMEEMEEE A
SARBRAATIR - TR
HETREA - —RME - TLEHA
ZHERNMF - ARAEBNZEMR
BlERREAEEH - ZRESFA
BHEE  HEEREHER - REA
AN S BN RZ B 12 A5 SR B0 R A A
REMOTE RGN - AREHE
BRBEH) T2 3 B ROM B AT RE S| 2
MM TIREAE  ERAAKER
1TEYE - RIEHRRBETHRE
ARFE 1 B KT VAR S sz IR FE N A
BERBE AKERREFENEE
DERRBDEE  RARAEER
HNEERKLBHAGEEE -
REE I B A AR E R
HHBARBMEKXD °
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19.

20.

B 75 R 3R Y =
31 December 2020
—E-EF+ZRA=+—H

CONTRACT ASSETS (Contd)

The retention money is to be settled at the end of each reporting date as

follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. BHEE &)
RESEREHE AR IZUTH

4ty
©wE

2020 2019
—T-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETTT

—g-%F

— i he—

SRR

After one year

532 571

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

20. RERBEEEY

2020 2019

—E-BHF —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETT

Cash and bank balances e MIRTTH & 269,166 73,147

Time deposits T EATF R 100,000 100,000

Cash and cash equivalents ReELREEED 369,166 173,147
Denominated in: HEE

RMB NS 359,306 172,313

usD £ 22 815

HK$ BIT 9,838 19

369,166 173,147

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks

authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks and time deposits earn interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default and no expected

credit loss was expected to incur.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate to their

fair values.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2020
—E-THE+-A=+—H

21. TRADE PAYABLES 21. B EARE
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of each reporting REREHR - EHENKBEER
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: HZRHHMRE T

2020 2019
—ECRE —ET-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTTT
Within 3 months 3fEAR 22,921 18,223
Over 3 months 3fE A E 2,361 -
25,282 18,223
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled in less BHRNFIETGTEE—RN=(E
than three months. The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate RA#E - BHRENFIENREE
to their fair values. HENERSE o
22. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 22. HttENRERESER
2020 2019
—ECRE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTIT
Payroll payables ENIE 5,903 5,360
Tax payables other than income tax FERT R IE (PSRRI 6,014 4,809
Amounts due to related parties JE 1~ RSt 75 SRR 1,489 11,026
Deposits b e 8,038 6,531
Listing expenses il 5a 1,727 8,163
Other payables HAb fERTFIR 12,485 9,850
35,656 45,739
The amounts due to related parties were non-trade in nature, non-interest- FETREEt A RBAIEZE S MEE - 1~
bearing and repayable on demand. TR RBEIRENRER o
The carrying amounts of financial liabilities included in other payables and SFAHEMEMNRIELEAERNS
accruals approximate to their fair values. MBEENEREEE N ERE °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 3R Y =
31 December 2020
“ECTFE+-A=+—H

23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 23. BHEE

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETIT

Advanced receipts for property management MEE IR RIGERBTEK

and value-added services A 40,235 29,402
Included in contract liabilities are amounts due to related parties of R-F_FF+-A= ‘f’ B &
RMB2,203,000 as at 3| December 2020 (2019: RMB821,000). The ABRHBENENBEERTFIERA
increase in contract liabilities during the reporting period was mainly due R #2,203,0007T (:%—TLE VN
to the increase in the number of properties under management by the E#821,0007T) - X BERNWE
Group. HIEMEZARAEEEENEH

BIBNATEL -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2020
—E-THE+-A=+—H

24. PROVISIONS 24, B1E

Assurance-type

warranties

REAMRIE

RMB'000

ARBFTT

At | January 2019 R-_ZE—-NF—HA—H =
Arising during the year FRNEE 55

As at 31 December 2019 and | January 2020 R=ZZT—hF+=-A=+—8

== —"ZTF—FH—H 55
Arising during the year FRESE 2,030
At 31 December 2020 R_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H 2,085

2020 2019

— —F-NF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBFTT

Analysed into: DR -

Current BN ER 834 22

Non-current JERNHR 1,251 33
The above provision is recognised for expected warranty claims on services B EREBEREREA MG - 5
provided during the year, based on estimation of the management. It is FAREARBOTERRIE AR
expected that these costs will be incurred in the next one to two years. R MHZERABN AR —ER
Assumptions used to calculate the provision for warranties were based on FREE - ARTEREBRENR
current sales levels and current information available about repairs based RIGERNE A H S K K& & B Al &
on the warranty period for the services provided. S AEEE (EREHERBNR

EH)HER -
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25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. IRA
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREE.IIBTZEER
Equivalent
Number of Nominal nominal
shares value value
RO EE A ZEEE
HK$ RMB
AT AR®
Authorised: JEE :
Upon incorporation and at BRI AV IS
31 December 2019 —ZT—NEF
Spm = s =] 38,000,000 380,000 340,248
Increase in authorised share capital EERRAIE N 9,962,000,000 99,620,000 89,517,836
At 31 December 2020 RZEZTF
A= 2 10,000,000,000 100,000,000 89,858,084
2020 2019
—g-¥F —T hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETTT
Issued and fully paid: ERTILHE -
400,000,000 (2019: 10,000) 400,000,0008% (ZF— N5 -
ordinary shares of HK$0.0 each 10,0000% ) FAXEIE0.01 T

2T 3,572 =
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B 75 R 3R BT =
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (Contd) 25. RA&(#)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (Contd) BREMEIIEBTZERR
(&)
A summary of movements in the Company's share capital is as follows: RNATIRAEBEMNT -
Number of Nominal
shares value
R E EfE
Notes HK$
FaE BT
Upon incorporation EER D AVAL (i) 1 - -
Issue of new shares FAREELT (ii) 9,999 100 90
At 31 December 2019 and NS
| January 2020 EJF_ H &
e
=F=E 10,000 100 90
Capitalisation Issue BEAR{LEETT (ii) 299,990,000 2,999,900 2,674,980
Issue of new shares upon BRAARBEZITHNR (iv)
initial public offering 100,000,000 1,000,000 896,926
At 31 December 2020 RZEZTF
T=H=1=H 400,000,000 4,000,000 3,571,996
Notes: Pi5E
0] The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited 0] RZZB-NAFNATZB - AR
liability in the Cayman Islands on 12 August 2019 with authorised share ﬂﬁﬁ;ﬁ%?ﬁﬁiiﬁﬂ%%ﬁ
capital of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each. On BRAT - EEMRA%380,000
the same day, one fully paid subscriber share was allotted and issued to an BT Z%B&OO0,000HQ#HXE
initial subscriber who is an independent third party, and the said share was BEO0.01BTHRG - RA - —H&
then transferred to Foison Amber Development. Upon completion of the PR REARMERE REITT
above, the Company was wholly owned by Foison Amber Development. —RERBYE=FNIIRRE

A TR BE R AR R T AR
HER - LHMBBATKIEL AR
AIRSKINEREREEHES -
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B 75 R 3R Y =
31 December 2020
—E-EF+-A=+—H

25. SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (Contd)

Notes: (Cont'd)

0!

(iii)

On 2 October 2019, Foison Amber Development provided funds of
approximately USD 12,690,000 (equivalent to RMB89,755,000) to the
Company to settle the payables due to then shareholders of Xingye IOT
Management arising from the reorganisation. The funds were capitalised by
the allotment and issuance of 9,999 shares to Foison Amber Development.

Pursuant to a written resolution of the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) passed on 7 February 2020, a total of 299,990,000 shares
of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued at par value to the Shareholders
as of the date immediately before the Listing Date on a pro rata basis by
way of capitalisation of HK$2,999,900 (the “Capitalisation Issue”) from the
Company's share premium account on the Listing Date.

On the Listing Date, 100,000,000 new shares were issued at a price of
HK$1.99 per share in connection with the Company's initial public offering
on the Stock Exchange.

All the shares issued during the year rank pan passu with other shares in

issue in all respects.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.

25. BA& (&)

BREEIOIIBIZEEBR
(&)

BieE : (&

iy MZTE-—NAFTHAZB - &KHPHE

(ii)

(iv)

REZARRRIREE S 412,690,000
EL(HERARKS9,755,000
TL)  ERN ERELERENE
XY EIRE RAOREN BN K
H BB BMLIARERLRER
179,999 MR o T F A& A
1t °

BARRBRRE([REDNR=F
“EF_AtHBAMNEEAR
B OREEZLITHEHBIER - &K
NRIBBR £ A HEBAR R K
DR BERE AR162,999,900/8 7T
RO MR RE S RETEH
299,990,000% F A E{E0.0 1 BITH)
B ([EA(LEE1T]) -

REMBE RARRAR A
iy =R/ NN - -
100,000,000 1 FT &5 - BE1TER
X1 997 TT °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2020
—ECEF+ZRA=+—H

26. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statements of

changes in equity.

(i) Share premium
The share premium of the Group represents the difference between

capital injection and the share capital paid by the shareholders.

(ii) Merger reserve and capital reserve
The merger reserve and capital reserve of the Group represents
those reserve arose from the reorganisation for the purpose of listing

on the Stock Exchange.

(iii) Statutory surplus reserve
In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of
association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, each of these
entities is required to appropriate 10% of its net profits after tax,
as determined under the Chinese Accounting Standards, to the
statutory surplus reserves until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
its registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the
relevant PRC regulations and in the articles of association of the
entities, the statutory surplus reserves may be used either to offset
losses, or to be converted to increase share capital provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered
capital of the Group. The reserves cannot be used for purposes
other than those for which it is created and is not distributable as

cash dividends.

(iv) Other reserve
Other reserve of the Group represents those reserves arising from

the share-based payment in prior years.

F 3R 2020
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 3R Y =
31 December 2020
—E-EF+-A=+—H

27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 27. RERERERMTE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions () EEHFRERS
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use FR - AEEEBFHER
assets and lease liabilities of RMB1,894,000 (2019: RMBI,745,000) EBENERAEEEREE
and RMB 1,894,000 (2019: RMBI,745,000), respectively, in respect of BEMNFEEFESAIRA
lease arrangements for buildings. R ¥ 1,894,0007T (20194

AR 7450007T) R AR
1.894,0007T (20194 : AR#E

1,745,0007T) °
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) MEFTHELENEEEH
activities

Lease

liabilities

HESE

RMB’000

ARMT T

At | January 2020 N_ZE-_FTF—H—H 4,054
Changes from financing cash flows BMEREREEENE -
New leases HHE 1,894
Interest expenses FBEAX 174
Amount settled through debt transfer agreement iRIBEFEREDZE SN (1,026)
At 31 December 2020 == 5,096
Lease

liabilities

HERE

RMB'000

ARBTTT

At | January 2019 R-ZTE—-—h&F—H—H 2,225
Changes from financing cash flows BMEREREEENEH) =
New leases g 1,745
Interest expenses FERAZ 84
At 3| December 2019 RZZE-—NF+=A=+—H 4,054
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2020
—E-THE+-A=+—H

27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 27. IRERERERMT (@)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Contd)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERERHARE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash FFABReRERNEER SN
flows is as follows: BRI T -

2020 2019
—EBoBE

—_—=_=

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT

Within operating and financing activities B L LR &R BT - =

28. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 28. ABEARE
The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at the end of each REBRSRERARLBEEANE
reporting period. BfE-

29. COMMITMENTS 29. HEIE
The Group had no significant commitments as at the end of each reporting REBERNSWERI MEARE -
period.
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties during

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. BEES RS

BRIt S MR E D
RN RZN RE
A AREBHEEE S AU

(2)

the year: "RE:
2020 2019
—R-%F —F-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B &E AR®TR ARETT
Sales of services or products: HERBEHER
Property management and value- MR T IR EEE K&
added services rendered to A RS
related parties (i) (ii) 26,766 24,122
Property engineering services mEARE T TRt %
rendered to related parties T2RR% (i) (i) 45,688 33,868
Others HAfth 1,414 36
73,868 58,026
Notes: BfsE -

() The sales of services rendered to the related parties based on
agreements mutually agreed by both parties.

(i) The Group was engaged in provision of property management and
value-added services and property engineering services to Ever
Diamond Group, Zensun Enterprises Group and Henan Zensun
Enterprise Development Group Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries (the
“Zensun Development Group”).

Ever Diamond Global Company Limited and Zensun Enterprises
Limited are ultimately owned as to 100% and 71.99% by a
discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as settlor and protector
as at the date of this report. As Ms. Huang is the mother of Ms. Zhang,
the non-executive Director of the Company, both Zensun Enterprises
Group and Ever Diamond Group are connected entities of Ms. Zhang.
Additionally, Zensun Development Group are entities controlled by
Ms. Zhang.

The related party transactions in respect of property management
and value-added services and property engineering services rendered
to related parties also constitute continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter |4A of the Listing rules.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2020
—ECEF+ZRA=+—H

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contq)
(b) Outstanding balances with related parties

O)

F 3R 2020

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Xingye |OT
Management, a subsidiary of the Company, signed a debt transfer
agreement with certain related parties to transfer the receivable
collection rights due from those related parties to Henan Zensun
Real Estate Co, Ltd, another related party of the Group. After the
completion of the transfer, Xingye IOT Management. will settle the
receivables and payables with Henan Zensun Real Estate Co., Ltd. on

the net basis after offsetting.

Details of the Group's outstanding balances of trade receivables,
contract assets, other payables, contract liabilities and lease liabilities
and amounts with related parties are disclosed in notes 17, 19, 22,

23 and |5 to the financial statements, respectively.

30. BEEEE RS (#)
(b) EEEEEEF KRB EEER

BHEZZ-_TF+A=+—
HIEFE - AARIMBARE
XY E IR EE TR 5 55
ERE R SREKGZES
Bt 77 B FEMGR B R GRS R T
AEES BB TEEEE
XBRAT - EETHKE - H
RV E IR AR A FEE
HREIFEEXARARME
W8 K S 308 o

MEE - HEfbER K
H - &H8E HEAEKS
Bt SRIER R B EBERFIED
IR B RS R RMIEE17 ~ 19 -
22~ 3R I5HFE -

RSB R T B 5 R WK
BB

AN

=

Compensation of key management personnel of (c) XEEXTEEEASHMH
the Group

2020 2019

—®-®F -T- N5

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT AR®ETTT

Short term employee benefits REEERT 1,443 945

Post-employment benefits BEE 2 12 A 70 55

1,513 1,000

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to

the financial statements.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 3. RERESNERMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as RERESHR ST AENR
at the end of each reporting period are as follows: FREELT :
Financial assets THEE
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—ZT— hi
+=—A=+—
RMB’000 RMB'000
Financial assets at amortised cost REBHEARIENSMEE AR®T T ARETTT
Trade receivables B 5 EWIE 38,394 18,237
Financial assets included in prepayments, T ATERFRIE - H IR IE K
other receivables and other assets HEMWEENSREE 1,900 916
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREZEED 369,166 173,147
409,460 192,300
ZHEE

Financial liabilities

31 December

31 December

2020 2019

—T-hF

+=—RA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000

Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHEARIENEMAE ARET T ARETTT

Trade payables B S ENFIA 25,282 18,223
Financial liabilities included in other STAEMEMN RN EER

payables and accruals okt s=Eiy 23,739 35,570

Lease liabilities HEAE 5,096 4,054

54,117 57,847
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B 75 R 3R BT =
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, trade payables, financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets and financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely due
to the short term maturities of these instruments as at 3|1 December 2020
and 2019.

The Group's finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager reports directly
to the chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each reporting
date, the finance department analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial

officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the
amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation

sale.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash and cash
equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which

arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are credit risk
and liquidity risk. The directors of the Company reviews and agrees policies

for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

F 3R 2020
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties and
related parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's

exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to
credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on
ageing information unless other information is available without undue cost
or effort, and year staging classification. The amounts presented are gross

carrying amounts for financial assets.

3/ December 2020

12-month

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. iIKAMEEEERBER

(&)

EERERE
AEEERRIREEBRFNF=
TRBETETER - AEENK
REMEBEAREEEGFETES
MEP  ARIEEEZER - It
O - RRUCRIBESRIFTEREE -
AEBAZIZROERL TEK ©

B = B 2 F R B By
TREFREASBEEERRET
MEEEERESER EX 2N

RIREN RER (BRIFEMERE
ANEBERARE DS -
AERIGR) - AMERER DR - AT
EICER/ERHEENREASR

—F_FFf-A=F+—H

ECL Lifetime ECL
12{8 A A
FRER  2HEASEEER  giified

Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FIER F2ER FIEER Blh% H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TR AR®TRT ARETR AR®TR

Trade receivables® B SRR - - - 38,845 38,845
Financial assets included in STABRTE - Bt
prepayments, other receivables PN IE R LA
and other assets BENEMEE
— Normal#* —[EF* 1,900 - - - 1,900
Contract assets* BHEE - - - 10,749 10,749
Cash and cash equivalents ReREEZEY
— Not yet past due — RABE 369,166 - - - 369,166
371,066 - - 49,594 420,660
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. HEMREBREERBE

AND POLICIES (Contd) (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Contd) BEaEERERERE)
3/ December 2019 —E-NF+=A=1+—H
12-month
ECL Lifetime ECL
HRREEER Simplified
Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F IR FUER FIEE STz st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Trade receivables* B SR HIE* - - - 18466 18466
Financial assets included in STATERIEE - Bt
prepayments, other receivables FEURRIE R H At
and other assets BENEHEE
— Normal** =MEER 916 - - - 916
Contract assets* BHEE* = = - 11,527 11,527
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY
— Not yet past due — AR 173,147 - - - 173,147
174,063 - - 29993 204,056
& For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group applies the i HRAEERABCORET AR
simplified approach for impairment, information based on the provision EHRBHERENEEMS -
matrix is disclosed in notes 17 and |9 to the financial statement, respectively. ER BB fE r) &K 5 B B 75

RRMIFEI7 R 9P EE o

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other **  fWEt ATEN IR - AR WRIE
receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are not REMEEN S BEET R
past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a EMEENBERTEECREED
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit B EE bz B ¥4 i R LA R K 1 15
quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful’’. meRAtEEREENEEER

BRBIETE ] BRI ESH
BENEEERKER L] -
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. ¥ EREBEEERBE

AND POLICIES (Conta) (&)

Liquidity risk REBEEER

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of each REBREHR  TEESRBER
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as & ) AR B IR SRR B BB R 40
follows: s ¢

As at 3] December 2020 R-F-FF+=-F=+—H

Less than lto5 Over

On demand | year years 5 years Total

BEXR PRIF I E55 BiBSF st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR ARETR

Trade payables BHRENTIE 25,282 - - - 25,282
Financial liabilities included STAE MR FIE
in other payables RIETERN
and accruals SRBGE 23,739 - - = 23,739
Lease liabilities HERRE - 1,326 2,959 1,891 6,176
49,021 1,326 2,959 1,891 55,197
As at 31 December 2019 R-B-NF+=FA=+—H
Less than | to 5 Over
On demand | year years 5 years
REKR N3 | 56 A5 E
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT ARETE ARETT ARETE AR®ETR
Trade payables BHEMNTE 18223 - - - 18223
Financial liabilities included STAE AR FRIE
in other payables RIEGT B
and accruals ERBGE 35,570 = < - 35570
Lease liabilities MEAE = 2,030 1,504 1280 4814
53793 2,030 | 504 1280 58,607
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders'

value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it
in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,

policies or processes for managing capital during the reporting period.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings divided by total equity. As at the end of the
reporting period, there was no interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

As such, no gearing ratio as at the end of the reporting date was presented.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events after 3| December 2020 and up to the

date of this annual report.

F 3R 2020
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

35. R BB RE

ARARBERRNFTBEARRKRE
BRI

2020 2019
—EBCEF —ZE-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSET FREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary B A AR E 330 352
Total non-current asset ERHEELE 330 352
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Cash and cash equivalents ReLREZEED 6,936 -
Due from subsidiaries FEULHT B A B FB 238,127 89,755
Total current assets mEEELE 245,063 89,755
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals HtENRIBRETER 2,720 389
Total current liabilities mENREREE 2,720 389
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 242,343 89,366
Net assets BEFE 242,673 89,718
EQUITY R
Share capital (note) AR (Bt sE) 3,572 =
Reserves (note) i (Mt 239,101 89,718
Total equity G et 242,673 89,718
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (Contd)

Note:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2020
—E-THE+-A=+—H

35.

A summary of the Company's share capital and reserves is as follows:

Share
capital

BRAs

Share
premium
R4 EE
RMB’000
AR¥TT

RMB’000
ARBT T

At 12 August 2019

RZE—NFNA+=H

KRR BMRIRER (#)

Mo
ARAZBARE BB

Retained
earning
REEER
RMB’000
AR%TFT

Exchange
Total

At
RMB’000
AR®TT

reserve
BB 5 e
RMB’000
AR®ET T

Loss for the period HiREE = 7 & (34) (34)
Other comprehensive loss for the period HREMEEESR
Exchange differences on translation MEBINETSEE 2

of foreign operations BE N =R - - ?3) - 3)
Total comprehensive loss for the period HR2EERLESE - - 3) (34) (37)
Issue of new shares HRETT - 89,755 - - 89,755
At 31 December 2019 and RZZE—NF

| January 2020 T=EET—EE

—“Z-ZF5—H—H - 89,755 3) (34) 89,718

Profit for the year F N - - - 8,406 8,406
Other comprehensive loss for the year FREMEEEE
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINRIBEE 2

foreign operations EHERE - - (15,535) - (15,535)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEEEER - - (15,535) 8,406 (7,129)
Capitalisation issue EN(d 2,675 (2,675) - - -
Issue of new shares upon initial public offering B X AR &1L 897 177,591 - - 178,488
Share issue expense FTAREEATR - (10,164) - - (10,164)
2020 interim dividend paid BERNZZ=TFHEHRE - - - (8,240) (8,240)
At 31 December 2020 RZFZTF

+—A=+—H 3,572 254,507 (15,538) 132 242,673
36. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  36. #t/EH & B#EHEK
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the MBBEN_E_—F=HA+HA
board of directors on |5 March 2021. BESSHEWRETE
F4R 2020 BRI EEER D A 191




FINANCIAL SUMMARY
BRHE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—-HLFE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

BB —T-hEF O ZE-N\F& ZE—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TRE ARETT ARBTT AR®TT ARET:R
Revenue W 213,188 184,122 131,046 76,068 47276
Gross profit E7 86,739 78,652 62,291 38,206 22,308
Profit before tax BREE A A 60,720 46,904 45458 26343 15,319
Income tax expense Pt (17,217) (11,731) (11,238) (7,064) (3.833)
Profit for the year F R 43,503 35,173 34220 19,279 1,486

Attributable to: VAT A -

Owners of the Company AREEAA 43,503 35,173 34,220 19,279 11,486

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND LEEE  REzkE&RE

LIABILITIES
As at 3| December
Rt+t=B=+—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—ECER “T-NEF “E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFIT AREFTT AREFT AREFT
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE 7,141 5,533 3,640 3491 ,465
Current assets MEBEE 423,113 210,468 188,290 127,901 48,499
Total assets EEBE 430,254 216,001 191,930 131,392 49,964
Equity and liabilities EsRaE
Non-current liabilities ERBaE 5,833 2228 921 826 936
Current liabilities RENAE 108,077 99,773 69,793 43570 24,365
Total liabilities A58 113,910 102,001 70714 44396 25301
Total equity iR 316,344 14,000 121216 86,996 24,663
Total equity and liabilities RN EEER 430,254 216,001 191,930 131,392 49,964
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